
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




 1 


 
 
 


 BOARD MEETING MINUTES* 
Meeting Date: April 2, 2020 


 
(*In order discussed) 


 
April 2, 2020 
6:30 p.m. 
 
Board Members Present: Tim Lipinski 
 Gaylord Schaap 
 Larry Spillane 
 Sukey Robb-Wilder 
 Rich Holmer 
   
Board Members Absent: (None) 
  
Staff in Attendance: Ed Fortner, General Manager 
 Julie Kenny, Secretary to the Board 
  
Others in Attendance:     Rachel Hundley, Legal Counsel 


 
 


I. CALL TO ORDER (6:34 p.m.) 
 


The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by President Holmer at 6:34 p.m. 
 
 
II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:35 


p.m.) 
 
Director Holmer suggested deferring Item IX-B (Closed Session – GM Performance Evaluation).  
Brief discussion ensued.  Director Robb-Wilder moved that this item be deferred.  Director Lipinski 
seconded.  Motion carried 5-0. 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:38 p.m.) 
 
President Holmer reviewed the items on the Consent Calendar.  Director Lipinski moved to approve 
the Consent Calendar.  Director Spillane seconded.  Motion carried 5-0, except that Director 
Holmer abstained from voting on the Minutes of the March meeting as he was absent.  The 
following items were approved: 
 


A. Approval of the Minutes of the March 5, 2020 Board Meeting 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments. 


 
 C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence: (None.) 
 


 







 2 


 
IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:40 p.m.) 


(None.)  
 
 


V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:41 p.m.) * 
     *in the order discussed 
 
V-A. (6:41 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Emergency Response Plan – Coronavirus update.    


The GM provided a brief overview of this item.  Board discussion ensued.  No formal 
action was taken. 


 
 
V-B. (7:10 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Temporary waiver of all or part of the District’s 


Delinquency procedures (RH).  The GM provided an overview of this item.  Board 
discussion ensued.  Direction was given to staff to monitor the impact of a temporary 
waiver of portions of the District’s Delinquency procedures.   


 
V-C. (7:30 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Resolution 20-12, Declaring an Emergency and to 


Temporarily Authorize Increased Authority of the General Manager.  The GM 
provided an overview of this item.  Board discussion ensued.  Comments were made by 
Legal Counsel Rachel Hundley.  Further discussion ensued.  Director Robb-Wilder 
moved to approve Resolution 20-12, Declaring an Emergency and to Temporarily 
Authorize Increased Authority of the General Manager, subject to defining “reasonably 
prudent timeframe” referenced in Section 2 to be 24 hours.  Director Spillane seconded 
as amended.  Motion carried 5-0.  Additional comments were made by Rachel Hundley. 


 
V-D. (7:54 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re FY 2020-21 Draft Budget.  The GM provided an 


overview of this item.  Discussion ensued. 
 
V-E. (8:23 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Amended Capital One Refinancing Agreement.  


The GM provided an overview of this item.  Discussion ensued.   
 
V-F. (8:28 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Renewing Lease with Ferrellgas.  The GM provided 


an overview of this item.  Director Robb-Wilder moved to approve an extension of our 
existing Lease for three years until July 1, 2023 at $2,606.31 monthly.  Director Lipinski 
seconded.  Motion carried 5-0. 


 
 


** At 8:34 p.m. a brief recess was taken.  The meeting reconvened at 8:40 p.m. 
 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (8;40 p.m.) 
 
The GM provided a report on the following items: 
 
1. Laboratory testing 
2. Water production and sales 
3. Leaks 
4. Guerneville rainfall 
5. In-House Construction Projects 
6. Labor Negotiations 
7. Lower Russian River Community Action Group Governance Meeting 
8. 17448 River Lane Update 
9. Grant(s) Update 
10. Gantt Chart 
11. District computers upgrades 
12. Lower Harrison emergency project update 
 







 3 


Discussion ensued.  
 
 


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS 
(8:55 p.m.) 


 
1. Director Holmer reported on the officials’ meeting with Lynda Hopkins 
2. Director Robb-Wilder requested information re Form 700 
3. Director Robb-Wilder noted changes to cell phones and emails on the Directors’ 


information sheet 
 
 


VIII ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (9:10 p.m.) 
 
1. Emergency Response Plan 
2. Payment Policy and Delinquency Process 
3. Bartle Wells Rate Study 
4. FY 2020-21 Budget 
 
 


IX. CLOSED SESSION (9:21 p.m.) 
 
The Closed Session item below was deferred for discussion at the May meeting. 
 


A. Pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957(b)(1) – Public Employee Performance 
Evaluation 
Title: General Manager  


 
 


ADJOURN 
 
The meeting adjourned at 9:21 p.m. 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
 
 


Julie Kenny 
Clerk to the Board of Directors 


 
 
APPROVED:  
 
Gaylord Schaap: ______________ _ ______  
Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______________ _ ______  
Tim Lipinski:  ______________ _ ______  
Rich Holmer        
Larry Spillane        





		I. CALL TO ORDER (6:34 p.m.)

		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:35 p.m.)

		III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:38 p.m.)

		IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:40 p.m.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:41 p.m.) *

		VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (8;40 p.m.)

		VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS

		(8:55 p.m.)



		ADJOURN






              
 
 
 


www.sweetwatersprings.com 


 


BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
AGENDA 


 
May 7, 2020 Regular Meeting 


MEETING LINK: 
https://meetingsamer4.webex.com/meetingsamer4/j.php?MTID=mb8ad9955120007322766765d4


7d8e4e4 
Meeting Number:  622 470 439 


Password:  
ESactpXZ388 (37228799 from phones and video systems) 


 
JOIN BY PHONE: 
1-408-418-9388   


Access Code: 622 470 439  
6:30 p.m. 


 
NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES: It is the policy of the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District to offer its public programs, services and meetings in a manner that is readily accessible to 
everyone, including those with disabilities.  Upon request made at least 48 hours in advance of the 
need for assistance, this Agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to 
persons with disabilities.  This notice is in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (28 
CFR, 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). 
 
Any person who has any questions concerning any agenda item may call the General Manager or 
Assistant Clerk of the Board to make inquiry concerning the nature of the item described on the 
agenda; copies of staff reports or other written documentation for each item of business are on 
file in the District Office and available for public inspection.  All items listed are for Board 
discussion and action except for public comment items.  In accordance with Section 5020.40 et 
seq. of the District Policies & Procedures, each speaker should limit their comments on any 
Agenda item to five (5) minutes or less.  A maximum of twenty (20) minutes of public comment is 
allowed for each subject matter on the Agenda, unless the Board President allows additional 
time. 
  
 
I. CALL TO ORDER (Est. time: 2 min.) 
 


A. Board members Present 
 
B. Board members Absent 


 
 C. Others in Attendance 
 
 
II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT 


(Est. time: 2 min.) 
 
 
 
 



https://meetingsamer4.webex.com/meetingsamer4/j.php?MTID=mb8ad9955120007322766765d47d8e4e4

https://meetingsamer4.webex.com/meetingsamer4/j.php?MTID=mb8ad9955120007322766765d47d8e4e4





 2 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 (Note:  Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are deemed to be routine and 


non-controversial.  A Board member may request that any item be removed from 
the Consent Calendar and added as an “Administrative” agenda item for the 
purposes of discussing the item(s)). 


 
A. Approval of the Minutes of the April 2, 2020 Board Meeting 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments 
 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence.  Please note: Correspondence received 


regarding an item on the Administrative Agenda is not itemized here, but will be 
attached as back-up to that item in the Board packet and addressed with that 
item during the Board meeting 


 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT: The District invites public participation regarding the affairs of 
the District.  This time is made available for members of the public to address the Board 
regarding matters which do not appear on the Agenda, but are related to business of the 
District.  Pursuant to the Brown Act, however, the Board of Directors may not conduct 
discussions or take action on items presented under public comment.  Board members may 
ask questions of a speaker for purposes of clarification. 


 
 
V. ADMINISTRATIVE 


 
 


A. Discussion/Action re Rate Study presentation by Bartle and Wells Associates 
(Est. time 20 min.) 
 


B. Discussion/Action re Emergency Response Plan – Coronavirus update (Est. time 
15 min.) 


 
C. Discussion/Action re Economic Impact of Suspending Disconnects for Non-


Payment of Water Bill (Est time 15 min.) 
 
D. Discussion/Action re FY 2019-20 3rd Quarter Actual vs. Budgeted Operating and 


Capital Expenditures and County Balances (Est. time 10 min.) 
 
E. Discussion/Action re FY 2020-21 Draft Budget (Est. time 10 min.) 


 
 
 
VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT   
 
VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS 
  
VIII. ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA 
 
 
IX. CLOSED SESSION  
 
 A. Conference with Labor Negotiator (pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957.6): 
  District negotiator: Gregory Ramirez 
  Employee Organization: Stationary Engineers Local 39 
 







 3 


B. Pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957(b)(1)- Public Employee Performance 
Evaluation  


  Title: General Manager 
 


ADJOURN 







 4 


Sweetwater Springs Water District Mission and Goals 
 
The mission of the Sweetwater Springs Water District (SSWD) is to provide its 
customers with quality water and service in an open, accountable, and cost-effective 
manner and to manage District resources for the benefit of the community and 
environment.  The District provides water distribution and maintenance services to five 
townships adjacent to the Russian River:  


• Guerneville 
• Rio Nido 
• Guernewood Park 
• Villa Grande 
• Monte Rio 
 


GOAL 1: IMPLEMENT SOUND FINANCIAL PRACTICES TO ENSURE EFFECTIVE 
UTILIZATION OF DISTRICT RESOURCES 
 
GOAL 2: PROVIDE RELIABLE AND HIGH QUALITY POTABLE WATER WITH 
FACILITIES THAT ARE PROPERLY CONSTRUCTED, MANAGED AND MAINTAINED 
TO ASSURE SYSTEM RELIABILITY 
 
GOAL 3:  HAVE UPDATED EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS PLANS FOR ALL 
REASONABLE, FORESEEABLE SITUATIONS 
 
GOAL 4: DEVELOP AND MAINTAIN A QUALITY WORKFORCE 
 
GOAL 5: PROVIDE EXCELLENT PUBLIC OUTREACH, INFORMATION AND 
EDUCATION 
 
GOAL 6: ENHANCE BOARD COMMUNICATIONS AND INFORMATION 





		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT (Est. time: 2 min.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE

		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-A 
 
FROM: Ed Fortner, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: May 7, 2020  
 
SUBJECT:  Bartle and Wells Associates Rate Study Presentation
    
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive Rate Study Final Report. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  N/A 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Bartle and Wells Associates was awarded the work to produce a Rate Study with 
recommendations over a five year period.  The rate increase framework has been 
presented to the Board and the Final Report will be given tonight.  The Public Hearing 
on the recommended rate increase for FY 2021 will be held at the June 4th Board 
meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
 







 


SWEETWATER SPRINGS 
WATER DISTRICT 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


WATER RATE STUDY 
DRAFT FINAL REPORT 


 


  May 1, 2020 
 


 







 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


This page was intentionally left blank. 







 


 


 


May 1, 2020 
    
Ed Fortner 
General Manager  
Sweetwater Springs Water District 
17081 Highway 116 
Guerneville, CA 95446 
 
Re: Water Rate Study  
 
Bartle Wells Associates (BWA) is pleased to submit to Sweetwater Springs Water District (District 
the attached Water Rate Study Report.  The results of the of the study are a product of Staff and 
Budget Committee review. Findings were presented at the Board meeting on March 5, 2020. 
 
This study presents BWA’s analysis of the operating and non-operating expenses of the District’s 
water fund and provides five-year cash flow projections and rates.  The primary purpose of this 
study was to analyze the District’s water operations and make recommendations that would 
achieve financial sustainability. Another important purpose of this study was to review rates to 
ensure that they adhere to the State’s legal requirements.    
 
The enclosed report recommends updating rates and charges to more accurately recover the 
costs of providing service to the District’s water customers.  Recommendations were developed 
with substantial input from District staff and Ad-Hoc Committee members.  BWA finds that the 
rates and charges proposed in our report are based on the cost of service for each customer, 
follow generally accepted rate design criteria, and adhere to the substantive requirements of 
Proposition 218.  BWA believes that the proposed rates are fair and reasonable to the District’s 
customers. 
 
We have enjoyed working with the District on this rate study. Please contact us with any future 
questions about this study and the recommended water rates. 
 
Sincerely,  


 
 
   
Doug Dove, CIPFA   Abigail Seaman 
Principal    Financial Analyst 
  


 


 







 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


This page was intentionally left blank. 







 


 


 


Table of Contents 
Table of Contents .................................................................................................................................................. 1 
1 Executive Summary ....................................................................................................................................... 1 


1.1 Background .......................................................................................................................................... 1 
1.2 Proposition 218 .................................................................................................................................... 1 
1.3 Use of Generally Accepted Rate-Making Principles ............................................................................. 2 
1.4 Water System Overview ....................................................................................................................... 3 


1.4.1 Factors driving Rate Increases ......................................................................................................... 4 
1.4.2 Current Water Rates ........................................................................................................................ 4 
1.4.3 Proposed Water Rates ..................................................................................................................... 5 


2  Water Financial Projections and Rates ........................................................................................................ 5 


2.1 Water Financial Overview .................................................................................................................... 5 
2.2 Current Bimonthly Water Rates ........................................................................................................... 6 
2.3 Current Water Accounts ...................................................................................................................... 7 
2.4 FY 2019 Water Consumption ............................................................................................................... 7 
2.5 Financial Challenges/Key Drivers of Rate Increases ............................................................................. 8 


2.5.1  Ongoing Operating Cost Inflation ................................................................................................... 8 
2.5.2  Water Capital Plan .......................................................................................................................... 8 
2.5.3  Debt Obligations ............................................................................................................................. 9 
2.5.4  Fund Balance and Policies ............................................................................................................... 9 


2.6 Water Enterprise Revenue Requirements ......................................................................................... 10 
2.7 Water Rate Structure Recommendations .......................................................................................... 11 


2.7.1  Cost Allocation .............................................................................................................................. 11 
2.7.2  Fixed Service Charge Recommendations ...................................................................................... 11 
2.7.3  Water Variable Charge Recommendations ................................................................................... 12 


2.8 Regional Water Survey ....................................................................................................................... 12 
2.9 Estimated Bill Impacts ........................................................................................................................ 13 


3 Conclusion and Recommendations ............................................................................................................ 14 


3.1 Conclusion .......................................................................................................................................... 14 
3.2 Recommendations ............................................................................................................................. 14 


Appendix A: Prop 218 Notice .............................................................................................................................. 15 
Appendix B: Water Tables................................................................................................................................... 16 


 







 


Sweetwater Springs Water District  – 2020  Water Rate Study Report Page 1 


1 Executive Summary 
1.1 Background 
Sweetwater Springs Water District (District) provides water distribution and maintenance service to 
3,400 customers in five townships adjacent to the Russian River. Towns served include Guerneville, Rio 
Nido, Guernewood Park, Villa Grande, and Monte Rio. The District’s water system is a self-sustaining 
enterprise, meaning revenues (mostly sourced from water rates) aim to recover the cost to operate and 
maintain the water system. The District has implemented small annual rate increases over the last 10 
years but these have not been sufficient to address capital investment and replacement needs. 


The District has contracted Bartle Wells Associates (BWA) to conduct a water rate study which examines 
current and projected costs and the existing water rate structure as it pertains to California legislation. 
Basic objectives of the rate study include: 


• Identify rate setting principles. 


• Develop long-term financial projections to determine future annual water enterprise revenue 
requirements. 


• Evaluate rate alternatives and recommend water rates designed to equitably recover the costs 
of providing service. 


Based on input from District staff, key guiding principles included developing rates that: 


• Are fair and equitable to all customer classes. 


• Recover the costs of providing service and generate adequate funding for capital needs.  


• Are easy to understand and implement. 


• Comply with the legal requirements of Proposition 218 and other California laws. 


 


1.2 Proposition 218 
Utility rates are subject to the procedural and substantive requirements as set forth in Proposition 218.  
Proposition 218 was adopted by California voters in 1996 and added Articles 13C and 13D to the 
California Constitution.   Article 13D, Section 6 governs property-related charges, which the California 
Supreme Court subsequently ruled includes ongoing utility service charges such as water and 
wastewater.  Article 13D, Section 6 establishes a) procedural requirements for imposing or increasing 
property-related charges, and b) substantive requirements for those charges.  Article 13D also requires 
voter approval for new or increased property-related charges but exempts from this voting requirement 
rates for water and wastewater service.  The substantive requirements of Article 13D, Section 6 require 
the District’s utility rates to meet the following conditions: 







 


Sweetwater Springs Water District  – 2020  Water Rate Study Report Page 2 


• Revenues derived from the fee or charge shall not exceed the funds required to provide the 
property related service. 


• Revenues derived from the fee or charge shall not be used for any purpose other than that for 
which the fee or charge was imposed. 


• The amount of a fee or charge imposed upon any parcel or person as an incident of property 
ownership shall not exceed the proportional cost of the service attributable to the parcel. 


• No fee or charge may be imposed for a service unless that service is used by, or immediately 
available to, the owner of the property in question. 


• No fee or charge may be imposed for general governmental services, such as police or fire 
services, where the service is available to the public at large in substantially the same manner 
as it is to property owners. 


The procedural requirements of Proposition 218 for all utility rate increases are as follows:  


• Noticing Requirement:  The District must mail a notice of proposed rate increases to all 
affected property owners.  The notice must specify the basis of the fee, the reason for the fee, 
and the date/time/location of a public rate hearing at which the proposed rates will be 
considered/adopted. 


• Public Hearing:  The District must hold a public hearing prior to adopting the proposed rate 
increases.  The public hearing must be held not less than 45 days after the required notices are 
mailed. 


• Rate Increases Subject to Majority Protest:  At the public hearing, the proposed rate increases 
are subject to majority protest.  If 50% plus one of affected property owners submit written 
protests the proposed rate increases, the increases cannot be adopted. 


 


1.3 Use of Generally Accepted Rate-Making Principles 
The rates developed in this study use a straightforward methodology to establish an equitable system of 
fixed and variable charges that recover the cost of providing service and fairly apportion costs to each 
rate component.  The rates were developed using generally accepted cost-based principles and 
methodologies for establishing water rates, charges, and fees contained and discussed in the American 
Water Works Association (AWWA) M1 Manual.   


In developing water rates, it is important to know that there is no “one-size-fits-all” approach for 
establishing cost-based water rates. “The (M1 Manual) is aimed at outlining the basic elements involved 
in water rates and suggesting alternative rules of procedure for formulating rates, thus permitting the 
exercise of judgment and preference to meet local conditions and requirements.”1 


 
1 AWWA Manual M1 Manual, Principles of Water Rates, Fees, and Charges, Sixth Edition, 2012, page 5. 







 


Sweetwater Springs Water District  – 2020  Water Rate Study Report Page 3 


BWA used the following criteria when developing our recommendations for the District’s water rates 
and finances: 


1) Revenue Sufficiency:  Rates should recover the annual cost of service and provide revenue 
stability. 


2) Rate Impact:  While rates are calculated to generate sufficient revenue to cover operating and 
capital costs, they should be designed to minimize, as much as possible, the impacts on 
ratepayers. 


3) Equitability:  Rates should be fairly allocated among all customer classes based on their 
estimated demand characteristics.  Each user class only pays its proportionate share. 


4) Practicality:  Rates should be simple in form and, therefore, adaptable to changing conditions, 
easy to administer, and easy to understand. 


 


1.4 Water System Overview 
The District owns and operates a water system which collects, treats and distributes potable water. The 
District serves 3,400 customers over five townships in Sonoma County. Figure 1 shows a map of the 
District’s service area.  


Figure 1: Sweetwater Springs Water District Map 


 


The District’s main source of water revenue is bi-monthly water rates which were last increased on July 
1, 2019. Rates will need to be increased to address ongoing operating cost increases and capital repair 
and replacement needs.  


BWA recommends (1) increasing overall water rate revenue to better reflect the cost of service; and (2) 
modifying the volumetric rate structure by shifting from a four-tiered system to a two-tiered system.  







 


Sweetwater Springs Water District  – 2020  Water Rate Study Report Page 4 


1.4.1 Factors driving Rate Increases 
The primary factors impacting the water rates are the significant cost of water and capital 
improvements to repair aging infrastructure. The District faces an average of $900,000 in capital 
expenditures each year over the next five years.  


1.4.2 Current Water Rates 
The District’s current water rates are shown in Table ES 1 below.  


Table ES1: Current Bimonthly Water Rates 


 


Current water rates include a bimonthly fixed charge which is fixed for single family residential 
customers, dwelling-unit based for multi-family customers, and meter-size-based for commercial 
customers. The Capital Debt Reduction Charge (CDRC) is structured the same way as the fixed base 
charge and aims to recover approximately $300,000, or one-third of the current water enterprise debt 
service.  The District also collects variable charges on each hundred cubic foot (unit) of bimonthly water 
use. Customers pay volume rates based on a four-tier structure, with water allotments in each tier that 
increase with dwelling unit or meter size. 


  







 


Sweetwater Springs Water District  – 2020  Water Rate Study Report Page 5 


1.4.3 Proposed Water Rates 
Proposed Water Rates are shown on Table ES 2. 


Table ES2: 2020-21 Proposed Bimonthly Water Rates 


 


BWA recommends 5% annual rate revenue increases to keep up with ongoing operating cost inflation 
and cover necessary capital improvement expenses. BWA also recommends restructuring rates to more 
accurately reflect the cost of water service and maintain equitability between customers by condensing 
the current tiered volumetric rate structure into a two-tier rate for all water usage.  


2  Water Financial Projections and Rates 
2.1 Water Financial Overview 


Bartle Wells Associates conducted an independent evaluation of the District’s water enterprise finances.  
Key observations include:   


 Water rates have been increased approximately 3% per year annually. These have not been 
sufficient to but these have not been sufficient to address capital investment and replacement 
needs. 


 The water enterprise has debt service requirements totaling approximately $1 million per year. The 
District is currently refinancing one Capital One Loan and will achieve initial savings of $650,000 per 
year over the next five years.  


 The current Capital Improvement Plan totals $4.5 million through FY 2024-25. The CIP addresses 
aging infrastructure and other needed improvements and the District will requires additional 
funding to maintain prudent reserves.  


Base Rates CDRC 1


$/account $/account Tier 1 Tier 2
Single Family Residential $1.58 $3.77


All Users $68.51 $12.55 (0-8) 9+
Multi Family (by # Dwelling Units)2


2 DU's $106.19 $19.46 (0-12.4) 12.5+
3 DU's $143.88 $26.34 (0-16.8) 16.9+
4 DU's $181.56 $33.18 (0-21.2) 21.3+


Commercial (by meter size)
5/8" $68.51 $12.55 (0-8) 9+
1" $171.31 $31.40 (0-20) 21+
1 1/2" $341.51 $62.74 (0-40) 41+
2" $548.10 $100.38 (0-64) 65+


1 - Capital Debt Reduction Charge
2 - Multi Family unit multiplier = 0.55 for every extra unit; no meter multiplier


Volume Rates ($/hcf)







 


Sweetwater Springs Water District  – 2020  Water Rate Study Report Page 6 


 Projected water expenses were determined by developing projections based on historical audits, 
budgets, and up to date information provided by the District.  Projected expenses and minimum 
reserve fund targets were used to develop annual revenue requirements. 


 Current volume rates are complicated and require adjustments to comply with Proposition 218 
requirements.  


2.2 Current Bimonthly Water Rates 
Current rates are shown on Table 1.  


Table 1: Current Bimonthly Water Rates 


 


The District bills water service bi-monthly for residential customers and monthly for some commercial 
customers.  The current water rates include two components:  


1) Fixed Base Charge: Customers pay a fixed fee (calculated monthly) based on meter size. Single 
Family customers pay a single fixed fee based on typical single-family use. Multi family 
customers pay fixed fees based on dwelling unit according to the average change in additional 
water use per apartment dwelling unit, or a factor of 0.55. Commercial fixed rates increase by 
meter size according to meter factor ratios based on American Water Works Association 
(AWWA) guidelines.  


2) Capital Debt Reduction Charge (CDRC): The CDRC is structured the same way as the fixed base 
charge and aims to recover approximately $300,000, or one-third of the current water 
enterprise debt service.  


 
 
 
 







 


Sweetwater Springs Water District  – 2020  Water Rate Study Report Page 7 


3) Variable Charges:   
a. Residential customers are billed according to a 4-tier inclining rate structure. Water 


use is first billed in tier 1 and subsequently billed in higher, more expensive, tiers as 
water use increases in each billing period.  Quantity Charges are billed per hundred 
cubic feet (HCF), with 1 HCF equal to approximately 748 gallons of water.  


b. All other users (Multi Family and Commercial) are billed according to a two-tier 
inclining rate structure. Water use is first billed in tier 1 up to the customer’s peak 
unit according to a meter demand factor and subsequently billed in a higher rate if 
peak use is reached. Meter demand factors are determined by meter size and 
customer class.  


In general, rates do not currently cover the cost of water service. The existing volumetric tier structure 
needs to be cost-justified, is complex from a billing perspective and is difficult to explain to customers. 
The current rate structure may lead to unstable revenue as consumption changes.  


2.3 Current Water Accounts 
The District serves approximately 3,400 accounts, the majority of which are single family residential. 
Current accounts and dwelling units are shown on Table 2. 


Table 2: Sweetwater Springs Accounts & Dwelling Units 


 


Sweetwater Springs is a relatively slow-growth community and therefore can conservatively expect 0.5% 
of revenue growth per year as a result of new rate-payers or increased consumption.  


2.4 FY 2019 Water Consumption  
The water rate study conservatively assumes consumption has remained static since FY 2019 except for 
a small growth projection of approximately 0.5% per year between potential new users and a small 
increase in consumption. A summary of water consumption by customer class is shown in Figure 2 
below. Each customer class has a water use trend that peaks in the September/October bill, which 
reflects usage in July/August. The average single family customer uses about 9 units bimonthly.  


 


# Bimonthly Bills Single Family Multi Family Commercial Public Total
5/8" 16,108 1,798 683 90 18,679
3/4" 6 6
1" 683 95 70 24 872
1 1/2" 18 6 24
2" 24 42 18 84
3" 12 12
Total 16,797 1,929 813 138 19,677
# Unique Accounts 2,865 331 141 23 3,360
# Dwelling Units 2,866 529
Does not include Closed accounts or Collections Accounts







 


Sweetwater Springs Water District  – 2020  Water Rate Study Report Page 8 


Figure 2: Water use by Customer Class FY 2019 


 


2.5 Financial Challenges/Key Drivers of Rate Increases 
The District’s water enterprise will need to have consistent water rate increases over the next five years. 
Key drivers of future rate increases are summarized as follows. 


2.5.1  Ongoing Operating Cost Inflation 
The District’s water operations budget totals approximately $2.1 million for FY 2019/20 including costs 
for water distribution, treatment, and supplies. Expenses are projected to increase 3% per year 
according to the average yearly percentage change in the Consumer Price Index (CPI) and is projected to 
total $2.4 million by 2024-25. Projected total operations costs are shown on Table 3.  


Table 3: Water Projected Operations Costs 


 


2.5.2  Water Capital Plan 
The District’s Water Capital Improvement Plan totals $4.5 million and addresses aging infrastructure as 
well as other necessary improvements. The District’s 5-Year Capital Improvement Plan shown on Table 4.  


Table 4: 5-Year Capital Improvement Plan 


 


Budget (FY) 2019-20 Projection1 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25
Total Operating Expenditures $2,141,398 3.0% $2,205,640 $2,271,809 $2,339,963 $2,410,162 $2,482,467


Project Title 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25


Old River Rd from Morningside Dr to Hwy 116 (GV) $950,000
Woodland Drive – mainline replacement $550,000
Wright Drive main pressure zone. $350,000
Wright Drive upper pressure zone $900,000
Natoma Tank $250,000
Schoeneman pressure zone $900,000
Schoeneman Tank $600,000
Total $0 $1,500,000 $0 $1,500,000 $0 $1,500,000
Total Capital Funding 2019-20 through 2024-25 $4,500,000


draft CIP costs - inflation adjusted







 


Sweetwater Springs Water District  – 2020  Water Rate Study Report Page 9 


Rate revenue is not currently sufficient to cover the Capital Improvement Plan while maintaining 
prudent reserves. 


2.5.3  Debt Obligations 
In addition to operating costs, the District pays semi-annual debt service payments on five debt 
issuances shown on Table 5.  


Table 5: Water Projected Debt Service Schedule 


 


The District has a total debt service coverage requirement of 1.25x. 


2.5.4  Fund Balance and Policies 
The District’s current fund balance is shown on Table 6. The District has adopted policies establishing the 
minimum fund balance target in three categories. The operating cash reserve shall be at least 15% of annual 
operating expenses, the operating budget reserve shall be at least 25% of operating expenses, the debt 
payment reserve shall be at least 25% of total annual debt service payments, and the capital reserve shall be 
at least $250,000. The District’s current fund balance exceeds the total reserve requirement but regular rate 
increases are needed to maintain reserve funding with rising operations and capital costs.  


Table 6: Fund Balance and Policies 


 


 


 


 


Payment Schedule (FY) 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25
OUTSTANDING LOANS/BONDS Budget


1 2014 Gen. Obligation Bonds $64,284 $64,285 $64,285 $64,285 $64,286 $64,287
2 2019 GO Bond $34,536 $59,682 $59,097 $59,501 $58,893 $59,275
3 State Loan Payments $146,598 $146,598 $146,598
4 Citizens PLL $216,062 $216,062 $216,062 $216,062 $216,062 $216,062
5 Capital One Loan (Proposed Refi.) $518,494 $443,672 $444,792 $444,728 $443,816 $441,694


Total $979,974 $930,300 $930,835 $784,576 $783,057 $781,318


Total Cash Reserves 2019-20
All Accounts June 30, 2019 $3,186,493


Fund Reserve Policies
Operating Cash Reserve (15% Operating Exp.) $321,210
Operating Budget Reserve (25% Operating Exp.) $535,349
Debt Payment Reserve (25% of total Debt Service) $244,994
Capital Reserve $250,000
Total Reserve Requirement $1,351,553







 


Sweetwater Springs Water District  – 2020  Water Rate Study Report Page 10 


2.6 Water Enterprise Revenue Requirements 
The water cash flow projections incorporate the latest information available as well as reasonable, prudently 
conservative assumptions.  Key assumptions include: 


Growth & Water Demand Assumptions 


• The District is a relatively slow-growth community - growth is projected at 0.5% per year 
• Future water sales are projected to increase with growth. 


 
Revenue Assumptions 


• Rate revenue is projected to increase according to proposed rate increases and projected 
growth. 


• Interest income is estimated using 1% earning on beginning fund balance 
• Other revenues are estimated based on current budget.  


 
Expense Assumptions 


• Operations and maintenance costs are based on the 2019-20 budget and escalate at the annual 
rate of 3.0% to account for future cost inflation. 


• Debt service payments are projected according to payment schedules provided by Staff, 
including proposed refinance of Capital One Loan.  


• Capital expenditures include $4.5 million in projects through FY 2024/25. 
 


To address the needs outlined in Section 2.5, the District will need to increase water rates. Based on the 
assumptions above, BWA created a cash flow projection that determined revenue requirements for the 
next 5 years. The proposed rate increases are shown on Table 7.  


Table 7: Water Proposed Rate Increases 
Fiscal Year 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 


Proposed Rate Increases 5.0% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0% 
 


A detailed cash flow is shown on Table 7 in the appendix tables. 


The proposed rates accomplish the following:  


• Full Operations and Capital Improvement Plan funding  
• Minimum debt service coverage of 1.25x net operating revenues over the next 5 years (with the 


use of a Rate Stabilization Fund)  
• Minimum target fund balance according to policies outlined in Table 6. 


Rates would be effective following a mailed Proposition 218 notice and successful public hearing. The 
effective date is projected to be July 1, 2020 but may be delayed or reduced at the District’s discretion. 







 


Sweetwater Springs Water District  – 2020  Water Rate Study Report Page 11 


2.7 Water Rate Structure Recommendations 
In addition to the proposed increases, Bartle Wells Associates also recommends a rate structure change 
to align with requirements set forth in Proposition 218 and ensure greater security of revenue 
collection.  


2.7.1  Cost Allocation 
BWA conducted a review of District expenses and recommends that the District recover 70% of rate 
revenue from fixed charges (fixed base charges plus CDRC) and 60% from variable charges. This 
represents no change to the District’s current rate structure. 


2.7.2  Fixed Service Charge Recommendations 
BWA proposes no change to the current fixed rate structure. Proposed fixed charges are shown in Table 
8 below.  


Table 8: Proposed Fixed Charges 


 


Fiscal Year Current 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25
Proposed Rate Increase 5.0% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0%


Single Family Residential
All Users $65.25 $68.51 $71.94 $75.54 $79.31 $83.28


Multi Family (by # Dwelling Units)1


2 DU's $101.14 $106.19 $111.50 $117.08 $122.93 $129.08
3 DU's $137.03 $143.88 $151.07 $158.62 $166.55 $174.88
4 DU's $172.91 $181.56 $190.64 $200.17 $210.18 $220.69


Commercial (by meter size)
5/8" $65.25 $68.51 $71.94 $75.54 $79.31 $83.28
1" $163.15 $171.31 $179.87 $188.87 $198.31 $208.23
1 1/2" $325.25 $341.51 $358.59 $376.52 $395.34 $415.11
2" $522.00 $548.10 $575.51 $604.28 $634.49 $666.22


Single Family Residential
All Users $11.95 $12.55 $13.17 $13.83 $14.53 $15.25


Multi Family (by # Dwelling Units)1


2 DU's $18.53 $19.46 $20.43 $21.45 $22.52 $23.65
3 DU's $25.09 $26.34 $27.66 $29.04 $30.50 $32.02
4 DU's $31.60 $33.18 $34.84 $36.58 $38.41 $40.33


Commercial (by meter size)
5/8" $11.95 $12.55 $13.17 $13.83 $14.53 $15.25
1" $29.90 $31.40 $32.96 $34.61 $36.34 $38.16
1 1/2" $59.75 $62.74 $65.87 $69.17 $72.63 $76.26
2" $95.60 $100.38 $105.40 $110.67 $116.20 $122.01


1 - Multi Family unit multiplier = 0.55 for every extra unit; no meter multiplier


Base Rates ($/account bimonthly)


Capital Debt Reduction Charge ($/account bimonthly)







 


Sweetwater Springs Water District  – 2020  Water Rate Study Report Page 12 


2.7.3  Water Variable Charge Recommendations 
The proposed volume rates aim to recover a total of 30% of rate revenue through variable charges 
based on water use. This represents no change in the current volumetric revenue recovered. BWA also 
examined the current volumetric rate structure and proposes to reduce the current volume rates from 
four tiers to two tiers. The proposed tier 1 rate is unchanged from the current rate and represents 
lifeline use or slightly below average use. The tier 2 rate was calculated using a weighted average of 
rates and use in current tiers 2-4 and is designed to collect peaking costs for each customer class, 
conservatively estimated at about 10% of O&M.  


Volume rates are shown on Table 9 for FY 2020-21 only in the interest of space. Rates will increase 5% 
per year thereafter. A full schedule of proposed volumetric rates are shown in Table 9 in the appendix.   


Table 9: Proposed Volume Rates (FY 2020-21 only) 


 


2.8 Regional Water Survey 
Figure 3 shows the proposed rates in the context of water rates in the Napa/Sonoma Area. The District’s bill 
is currently among the lowest in the area and will continue to be low with the proposed rate increases. 


Figure 3: Regional Water Rate Survey 


 


Fiscal Year
Proposed Rate Revenue Increase
Single Family Residential Tier 1 Use Tier 2 Use Tier 1 Tier 2


All Users (0-8) 9+ $1.58 $3.77
Multi Family (by # Dwelling Units)1


2 DU's (0-12.4) 12.5+ $1.58 $3.77
3 DU's (0-16.8) 16.9+ $1.58 $3.77
4 DU's (0-21.2) 21.3+ $1.58 $3.77


Commercial (by meter size)
5/8" (0-8) 9+ $1.58 $3.77
1" (0-20) 21+ $1.58 $3.77
1 1/2" (0-40) 41+ $1.58 $3.77
2" (0-64) 65+ $1.58 $3.77


2020-21
5.0%







 


Sweetwater Springs Water District  – 2020  Water Rate Study Report Page 13 


2.9 Estimated Bill Impacts 
Estimated residential bill impacts are shown on Table 10. Condensing the tiered water rates causes 
residential bills with high use to increase because the Tier 2 rate has increased. Commercial rates with very 
use occurring in the current tiers 3 and 4 may see a decrease in bills since the condensed tier 2 is lower than 
these rates. Current rates were put in place to encourage water conservation, but the District can no longer 
cost-justify four water tiers.  


 


  


Median High Median High Median High
Water Use (hcf) 7 22 12 32 15 82
Water Bill (Current) $87.70 $134.20 $137.66 $198.56 $110.20 $408.20
Water Bill (Proposed) $92.09 $146.50 $145.18 $219.16 $120.08 $372.97
Bimonthly Difference $4.39 $12.30 $7.52 $20.60 $9.88 -$35.23
% Increase 5% 9% 5% 10% 9% -9%


Proposed Rate Increase Effect on Typical Water Users by Class 
FY 2020-21


Single Family Residential
Multi Family Residential


 (2 units)
Commercial
(5/8" Meter)







 


Sweetwater Springs Water District  – 2020  Water Rate Study Report Page 14 


3 Conclusion and Recommendations 
This water rate study report presents a comprehensive review of the Sweetwater Springs Water 
Dsitrict’s revenue requirements, cost allocations, and rate structures. The District will need regular 
annual rate increases to keep up with operations cost inflation and the Capital Improvement Plan while 
maintaining prudent reserves.  Current rates are complex and will need to be updated to reflect the cost 
of service. These factors were considered in the rate study to fairly develop rates for customers.   


3.1 Conclusion 
The District practices sound financial planning that has provided for the financial health of the water 
enterprise. Historically, the District has increased rate revenue 3% on a yearly basis to keep up with 
inflationary cost increases and to accumulate reserves. This allows the District to avoid rate spikes when 
new costs are incurred. Unfortunately, at this level the District is unable to keep up with rising 
operations cost and the current Capital Improvement Plan while maintaining prudent reserves. These 
recent developments have been factored into a comprehensive water rate study and are reflected in the 
above proposed rates. Adoption of these rates reflect the District’s commitment to stewarding 
financially sound utilities and providing reliable, high quality water service that will benefit the 
community many years into the future. 


3.2 Recommendations 
BWA recommends that the District adopt the rates shown in this report. Rates were developed as part 
of a collaborative process that included Staff and Budget committee review.  


At minimum, BWA recommends that the District review and update its water rate study every five years 
and/or concurrent with Master Plan Updates. Proposition 218 allows public agencies to adopt rates over 
a five-year planning period. Any further rate increases must be supported by a comprehensive rate 
study. 


  







 


Sweetwater Springs Water District  – 2020  Water Rate Study Report Page 15 


Appendix A: Prop 218 Notice 
 


 


 


  







 
Proposition 218 Notice to Customers and Property 


Owners of Record:  
Public Hearing Regarding Proposed Water Rate 


Increases 
 


 
Notice is hereby given, pursuant to Article XII(D) of the California Constitution, that Sweetwater Springs Water 
District is proposing to increase its rates for water service. The Board will conduct a public hearing on this 
matter, which will be held on:  
 
 Date: June 4, 2020 
 Time: 6:30 PM  
 Place: 17081 Hwy. 116, Ste. B Guerneville, CA 95446 
 
The public hearing will review the proposed water rate increase and other related changes to water fees and 
charges. More information is provided below.  
 
Water System Overview 
Sweetwater Springs Water District operates and maintains a public water enterprise system that supplies safe, 
potable drinking water to 3,800 customers through two separate water supply and distribution systems. In total, 
the District operates and maintains five wells, 26 storage tanks, five pressure zones, and a filtration plant. 
District services include maintenance and repair of the water system up to the water meter, weekly water 
quality testing, meter reading, small and large-scale capital improvements, and installation of new services.  


The District is aggressively investing in capital improvements, as well as infrastructure repair and replacement. 
We recently completed $1.5 million in capital improvement projects including replacement of 4,600 ft of existing 
pipelines and a new filter system.  


Why is an increase in rates necessary?  
The proposed increases to rates and charges, as set forth in Resolution 19-06 and summarized below, will be 
used to pay for the increasing need for capital improvements to the water system as well as debt service and 
operations costs. 


The current capital improvement program addresses the need to bring District capital facilities to a standard 
level of adequacy and, once that is done, a sustainable capital improvement program will be needed to keep 
District facilities at an adequate level.  The District faces an average of $750,000 per year for ongoing capital 
improvements necessary to maintain and upgrade existing facilities, including mainlines, tanks, and wells. 


The proposed water rate increase follows the water rate study performed by Bartle Wells Associates and 
completed in March 2020.  The study recommends restructuring water rates and increasing rate revenue 
annually by up to 5% in order to meet rising operations, debt, and capital improvement expenses. Budgets and 
spending needs will be analyzed on an annual basis to determine what level of increase, if any, is needed to 
meet expense requirements. The analysis done this year shows that an overall 5% rate revenue increase and 
a restructure of the current tiered volume rates is needed. 


More Information Available Prior to the Hearing: 
More information on the proposed water rates, including the draft Water Rate Study, is available at the District 
office at 17081 Highway 116, Suite B, Guerneville, California.  This information will also be posted on the 
District’s website, www.sweetwatersprings.com.  In addition, District staff can be contacted at (707) 869-4000 
to answer any questions you may have regarding the rate increases.    
 
 
 
 







Current Bimonthly Water Rates 
 


    Base Rates CDRC 1 Volume Rates ($/hcf) 
    $/account $/account Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 3 Tier 4 
Single Family Residential     $1.50 $3.00 $4.50 $6.50 
  All Users $65.25  $11.95  (0-8) (9-20) (21-80) 81+ 
Multi Family (by # Dwelling Units)2             
  2 DU's $101.14  $18.53  (0-12.4) (12.5-31) (32-124) 125+ 
  3 DU's $137.03  $25.09  (0-16.8) (16.9-42) (43-168) 168+ 
  4 DU's $172.91  $31.60  (0-21.2) (21.3-53) (54-212) 212+ 
Commercial (by meter size)             
  5/8" $65.25 $11.95 (0-8) (9-20) (21-80) 81+ 
  1"  $163.15 $29.90 (0-20) (21-50) (51-200) 201+ 
  1 1/2" $325.25 $59.75 (0-40) (41-100) (101-400) 401+ 
  2" $522.00 $95.60 (0-64) (65-160) (161-640) 641+ 
 hcf = hundred cubic foot, 748 gallons   
1 - Capital Debt Reduction Charge           
2 - Multi Family unit multiplier = 0.55 for every extra unit; no meter multiplier   


 
Current bimonthly water rates include a fixed base rate, Capital Debt Reduction charge and volumetric rates 
based on water use per hundred cubic foot (hcf) unit. One hundred cubic foot (hcf) is equal to 748 gallons. 
Rates need to be updated to reflect increased costs, capital repair and replacement needs, and the cost of 
water service to each customer pursuant to Proposition 218.  
 
Proposed Bimonthly Water Rates 
 


    Base Rates CDRC 1 Volume Rates ($/hcf) 
    $/account $/account Tier 1 Tier 2 
Single Family Residential     $1.58 $3.77 
  All Users $68.51  $12.55  (0-8) hcf 9+ hcf 
Multi Family (by # Dwelling Units)2         
  2 DU's $106.19  $19.46  (0-12.4) 12.5+ 
  3 DU's $143.88  $26.34  (0-16.8) 16.9+ 
  4 DU's $181.56  $33.18  (0-21.2) 21.3+ 
Commercial (by meter size)         
  5/8" $68.51  $12.55  (0-8) 9+ 
  1"  $171.31  $31.40  (0-20) 21+ 
  1 1/2" $341.51  $62.74  (0-40) 41+ 
  2" $548.10  $100.38  (0-64) 65+ 
 hcf = hundred cubic foot, 748 gallons   
1 - Capital Debt Reduction Charge       
2 - Multi Family unit multiplier = 0.55 for every extra unit; no meter multiplier 


 
The proposed bimonthly water rates represent an overall 5% rate revenue increase and a restructure of the 
current tiered volume rates from four tiers to two tiers.  
 
How will this impact a typical Single-Family bill?  
Sweetwater Springs utility rates are among the lowest in the area and will continue to be low with the proposed 
rate increases. Currently, a typical single family using 10 units of water bimonthly has a bill of $95.20. The 
proposed rates will increase the typical bill by 5%, or $6.01 bimonthly, for 10 units of water use. Greater water 
conservation will result in lower water bills.  
 
 
 







Rate Increase Approval Process 
 
Sweetwater Springs Water District will hold a public hearing at the Board meeting scheduled June 4, 2020 at 
6:30pm at the District offices, 17081 Hwy. 116 Ste. B Guerneville, CA 95446. 
 
If you are a property owner or the person responsible for paying for water service, you may protest the proposed 
rate increases either prior to or during the Public Hearing on June 4, 2020.  Only one protest per parcel will be 
counted. The rate increases will take effect unless protests are received from more than 50% of property parcels 
in the District. 
 
At the Public Hearing, the Board of Directors will consider all written protests that are submitted during the 
public hearing as well as written protests that have been received. Written protests must indicate the property 
address and the name of the owner of record of the property and be signed by the person submitting the 
protest.  Written protests may also be delivered to the District office no later than the close of the public 
hearing, as noticed above, or said protests may be sent by 1st-class mail, postage prepaid, to: 
 


Sweetwater Springs Water District 
P.O. Box 48 
Guerneville, CA  95446 


 
Mailed protests must be received by the District no later than the date of the public hearing.  Any protests 
received after the close of the public hearing will not be counted. 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 


Protest Ballot 
Please provide address information, sign, and return this page below the dotted line if you choose to protest. 
You may protest on a separate ballot.  If so, please include the information and signature requested. 
 
Address: _____________________________ 
  _____________________________ 
  _____________________________   
Or APN: _____________________________   (if multiple addresses, please list separately) 
 
If you are a property owner or the person responsible for paying for water service at this address and you object 
to the proposed change in District water rates, you may sign this form and mail it to: 


 
Sweetwater Springs Water District, P.O. Box 48, Guerneville, CA  95446 


 
or hand deliver it to the District Office at: 
 


17081 Highway 116, Suite B, Guerneville, California 
 


In order for this form to be counted as a valid protest against the proposed rate change, the form must be signed 
and delivered to the District Office no later than the end of the public hearing to be held on June 6, 2019.  Only 
one protest is permitted per parcel.   


□ I protest the proposed rate increase to fund the operation, maintenance, and capital improvement costs 
relative to providing water service.  (Check to indicate your objection to the proposed rate increase.) 
 
I declare that I am either the owner of the above-listed property, the authorized representative of the owner of 
the above-listed property, or the person responsible for paying for water service at the address shown above. 
 
Please Sign here: _________________________________________________________ 
 
 
Please Print here: _________________________________________________________ 


(Name of property owner if different than name of the person signing this protest.) 







 


Sweetwater Springs Water District  – 2020  Water Rate Study Report Page 16 


Appendix B: Water Tables 







Table 1 Current Bimonthly Water Rates
Table 2 Customer Information
Table 3 O&M Expense Projection
Table 4 Capital Improvement Plan
Table 5 Debt Service
Table 6 Fund Balance & Policies
Table 7 Cash Flow Projection Options
Table 8 Proposed Fixed Charges
Table 9 Proposed Variable Charges
Table 10 Water Rate Survey


Water COS Rate Study 2020


Draft Tables


Table of Contents


5/1/2020







Table 1: Current Bimonthly Water Rates
Sweetwater Springs Water District
Water COS Rate Study 2020


Base Rates CDRC 1


$/account $/account Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 3 Tier 4
Single Family Residential $1.50 $3.00 $4.50 $6.50


All Users $65.25 $11.95 (0-8) (9-20) (21-80) 81+
Multi Family (by # Dwelling Units)2


2 DU's $101.14 $18.53 (0-12.4) (12.5-31) (32-124) 125+
3 DU's $137.03 $25.09 (0-16.8) (16.9-42) (43-168) 168+
4 DU's $172.91 $31.60 (0-21.2) (21.3-53) (54-212) 212+


Commercial (by meter size)
5/8" $65.25 $11.95 (0-8) (9-20) (21-80) 81+
1" $163.15 $29.90 (0-20) (21-50) (51-200) 201+
1 1/2" $325.25 $59.75 (0-40) (41-100) (101-400) 401+
2" $522.00 $95.60 (0-64) (65-160) (161-640) 641+


1 - Capital Debt Reduction Charge
2 - Multi Family unit multiplier = 0.55 for every extra unit; no meter multiplier


Current Bimonthly Water Rates
Volume Rates ($/hcf)







Table 2A: Customer Information
Sweetwater Springs Water District
Water COS Rate Study 2020


# Bimonthly Bills Single Family Multi Family Commercial Public Total
5/8" 16,108 1,798 683 90 18,679
3/4" 6 6
1" 683 95 70 24 872
1 1/2" 18 6 24
2" 24 42 18 84
3" 12 12
Total 16,797 1,929 813 138 19,677
# Unique Accounts 2,865 331 141 23 3,360
# Dwelling Units 2,866 529
Does not include Closed accounts or Collections Accounts


Customer Information - Account Data







Table 2B: Customer Information
Sweetwater Springs Water District
Water COS Rate Study 2020


Bill 1 Bill 2 Bill 3 Bill 4 Bill 5 Bill 6 Total
7/2018 - 8/2018 9/2018 - 10/2018 11/2018 - 12/2018 1/2019 - 2/2019 3/2019 - 4/2019 5/2019 - 6/2019 FY 2018/19


Single Family 27,788 34,140 25,467 19,729 16,759 20,526 144,409
Multi Family 7,783 9,193 7,126 6,502 6,923 6,366 43,893
Commercial 7,650 9,110 5,262 3,531 5,072 4,754 35,379
Public 1,346 1,524 892 300 504 394 4,960
Total 44,567 53,967 38,747 30,062 29,258 32,040 228,641


Consumption % % Use Tiers 2-4
Tier 1 (0-8 units) 82,643 57%
Tier 2 (9-20 Units) 36,565 25% 59%
Tier 3 (21 - 80 units) 20,183 14% 33%
Tier 4 (80+ units) 5,018 3% 8%


144,409


Does not include Closed accounts or Collections Accounts


Total Water Use (hcf)


*peak use*


SFD - Water Use by Tier
Current Tier Breakpoints


Customer Information - Water Use


0


5,000


10,000


15,000


20,000


25,000


30,000


35,000


40,000


Jan / Feb Mar / Apr May / Jun Jul / Aug Sep / Oct Nov / Dec


Water Use by Customer Class FY 2018 - 2019


Single Family Multi Family Commercial Public







Table 3: O&M Expense Projection
Sweetwater Springs Water District
Water COS Rate Study 2020


Budget (FY) 2018-19 2019-20 Projection1 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25
EXPENDITURES
Salary and Benefits


Total Salary $930,800 $1,006,400 3.0% $1,036,592 $1,067,690 $1,099,720 $1,132,712 $1,166,693
Total Benefits $436,996 $514,368 3.0% $529,799 $545,693 $562,064 $578,926 $596,293


Total Salary and Benefits $1,367,796 $1,520,768 $1,566,391 $1,613,383 $1,661,784 $1,711,638 $1,762,987
Services and Supplies


Total Communications $25,170 $30,830 3.0% $31,755 $32,708 $33,689 $34,699 $35,740
Total Insurances $42,000 $44,000 3.0% $45,320 $46,680 $48,080 $49,522 $51,008
Total Mainte/Repair - Office & Vehicles $20,500 $27,000 3.0% $27,810 $28,644 $29,504 $30,389 $31,300
Total Maint/Repair - Facilities $135,800 $114,800 3.0% $118,244 $121,791 $125,445 $129,208 $133,085
Total Miscellaneous Expenses $30,500 $28,520 3.0% $29,376 $30,257 $31,165 $32,100 $33,062
Total Office Expenses $32,300 $34,100 3.0% $35,123 $36,177 $37,262 $38,380 $39,531
Total Operating Supplies $25,700 $28,200 3.0% $29,046 $29,917 $30,815 $31,739 $32,692
Total Professional Services $110,500 $132,500 3.0% $136,475 $140,569 $144,786 $149,130 $153,604
Total Rents & Leases $33,090 $33,090 3.0% $34,083 $35,105 $36,158 $37,243 $38,360
Total Transportation & Travel $27,050 $31,050 3.0% $31,982 $32,941 $33,929 $34,947 $35,995
Total Uniforms $3,440 $3,540 3.0% $3,646 $3,756 $3,868 $3,984 $4,104
Total Utilities $110,000 $113,000 3.0% $116,390 $119,882 $123,478 $127,182 $130,998


Total Services and Supplies $596,050 $620,630 $639,249 $658,426 $678,179 $698,525 $719,480
Total Operating Expenditures $1,963,846 $2,141,398 $2,205,640 $2,271,809 $2,339,963 $2,410,162 $2,482,467


1 - average CPI annual increase


O&M Expense Projection







Table 4: Capital Improvement Plan
Sweetwater Springs Water District
Water COS Rate Study 2020


CIP Project Title 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25


Old River Rd from Morningside Dr to Hwy 116 (GV) $950,000
Woodland Drive – mainline replacement $550,000
Wright Drive main pressure zone. $350,000
Wright Drive upper pressure zone $900,000
Natoma Tank $250,000
Schoeneman pressure zone $900,000
Schoeneman Tank $600,000
Total $0 $1,500,000 $0 $1,500,000 $0 $1,500,000
Total Capital Funding 2019-20 through 2024-25 $4,500,000


Capital Improvement Plan


draft CIP costs - inflation adjusted







Table 5: Debt Service
Sweetwater Springs Water District
Water COS Rate Study 2020


Payment Schedule (FY) 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25
OUTSTANDING LOANS/BONDS Budget


1 2014 Gen. Obligation Bonds $64,284 $64,285 $64,285 $64,285 $64,286 $64,287
2 2019 GO Bond $34,536 $59,682 $59,097 $59,501 $58,893 $59,275
3 State Loan Payments $146,598 $146,598 $146,598
4 Citizens PLL $216,062 $216,062 $216,062 $216,062 $216,062 $216,062
5 Capital One Loan (Proposed Refi.) $518,494 $443,672 $444,792 $444,728 $443,816 $441,694


Total $979,974 $930,300 $930,835 $784,576 $783,057 $781,318


* Capital Loan proposed refinance would save approx. $43,500 over 15 years
5 Capital One Loan (Proposed Refi.) $518,494 $443,672 $444,792 $444,728 $443,816 $441,694


Total Debt with Restructure $979,974 $930,300 $930,835 $784,576 $783,057 $781,318


Debt Service







Table 6: Fund Balance & Policies
Sweetwater Springs Water District
Water COS Rate Study 2020


Total Cash Reserves 2019-20
All Accounts June 30, 2019 $3,186,493


Fund Reserve Policies
Operating Cash Reserve (15% Operating Exp.) $321,210
Operating Budget Reserve (25% Operating Exp.) $535,349
Debt Payment Reserve (25% of total Debt Service) $244,994
Capital Reserve $250,000
Total Reserve Requirement $1,351,553


Reserves Above (Below) Policy $1,834,940


Fund Balance & Policies







Table 7: Cash Flow Projection Options
Sweetwater Springs Water District
Water COS Rate Study 2020


Five-Year Projection Current 1 2 3 4 5
Fiscal Year Reference 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25
Proposed Rate Increase 5.0% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0%
Growth 0.5% 0.5% 0.5% 0.5% 0.5%
Projected SF Bimonthly Bill (6 hcf use) $86.20 $90.51 $95.04 $99.79 $104.78 $110.02


Beginning Fund Balance Table 6 $3,186,493 $3,592,246 $2,632,120 $3,248,312 $2,609,826 $3,566,227


REVENUE
Capital Debt Reduction Charge Budget $292,811 $308,989 $326,060 $344,075 $363,085 $383,146
Water Sales - Base Rate Budget $1,644,824 $1,735,701 $1,831,598 $1,932,794 $2,039,581 $2,152,267
Water Sales - Use Charges Budget $680,136 $717,714 $757,367 $799,212 $843,368 $889,964


Total Rate Revenue $2,617,771 $2,762,403 $2,915,026 $3,076,081 $3,246,034 $3,425,378
Assessment Budget $750,000 $750,000 $750,000 $750,000 $750,000 $750,000
Interest1 Budget $31,865 $35,922 $26,321 $32,483 $26,098 $35,662
Connection Fees Budget $6,978 $6,978 $6,978 $6,978 $6,978 $6,978
Service Upgrades Budget $10,384 $10,384 $10,384 $10,384 $10,384 $10,384
Rent Budget $107,382 $107,382 $107,382 $107,382 $107,382 $107,382
Miscellaneous Revenue Budget $2,745 $2,745 $2,745 $2,745 $2,745 $2,745


Total Other Revenue $909,354 $913,411 $903,810 $909,972 $903,587 $913,151
Total Revenue $3,527,125 $3,675,814 $3,818,836 $3,986,053 $4,149,621 $4,338,529


EXPENDITURES
Total O&M Table 3 $2,141,398 $2,205,640 $2,271,809 $2,339,963 $2,410,162 $2,482,467
Capital Improvement Plan Table 4 $0 $1,500,000 $0 $1,500,000 $0 $1,500,000
Total Debt Service (w/ refi) Table 5 $979,974 $930,300 $930,835 $784,576 $783,057 $781,318
Total Expenditures $3,121,372 $4,635,940 $3,202,644 $4,624,540 $3,193,220 $4,763,786


Net Revenue Before Capital $405,753 $539,875 $616,192 $861,513 $956,402 $1,074,743
Net Revenue $405,753 ($960,125) $616,192 ($638,487) $956,402 ($425,257)
Ending Fund Balance $3,592,246 $2,632,120 $3,248,312 $2,609,826 $3,566,227 $3,140,971
Fund Balance Target $1,351,553 $1,364,831 $1,391,432 $1,382,129 $1,409,829 $1,438,316
Debt Service Coverage 1.4 1.6 1.7 2.1 2.2 2.4


1 - 1% earnings on beginning fund balance


Cash Flow Projection (BWA Proposed Increases)







Table 8: Proposed Fixed Charges
Sweetwater Springs Water District
Water COS Rate Study 2020


Fiscal Year Current 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25
Proposed Rate Increase 5.0% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0%


Single Family Residential
All Users $65.25 $68.51 $71.94 $75.54 $79.31 $83.28


Multi Family (by # Dwelling Units)1


2 DU's $101.14 $106.19 $111.50 $117.08 $122.93 $129.08
3 DU's $137.03 $143.88 $151.07 $158.62 $166.55 $174.88
4 DU's $172.91 $181.56 $190.64 $200.17 $210.18 $220.69


Commercial (by meter size)
5/8" $65.25 $68.51 $71.94 $75.54 $79.31 $83.28
1" $163.15 $171.31 $179.87 $188.87 $198.31 $208.23
1 1/2" $325.25 $341.51 $358.59 $376.52 $395.34 $415.11
2" $522.00 $548.10 $575.51 $604.28 $634.49 $666.22


Single Family Residential
All Users $11.95 $12.55 $13.17 $13.83 $14.53 $15.25


Multi Family (by # Dwelling Units)1


2 DU's $18.53 $19.46 $20.43 $21.45 $22.52 $23.65
3 DU's $25.09 $26.34 $27.66 $29.04 $30.50 $32.02
4 DU's $31.60 $33.18 $34.84 $36.58 $38.41 $40.33


Commercial (by meter size)
5/8" $11.95 $12.55 $13.17 $13.83 $14.53 $15.25
1" $29.90 $31.40 $32.96 $34.61 $36.34 $38.16
1 1/2" $59.75 $62.74 $65.87 $69.17 $72.63 $76.26
2" $95.60 $100.38 $105.40 $110.67 $116.20 $122.01


1 - Multi Family unit multiplier = 0.55 for every extra unit; no meter multiplier


Proposed Fixed Charges


Base Rates ($/account bimonthly)


Capital Debt Reduction Charge ($/account bimonthly)







Table 9: Proposed Variable Charges
Sweetwater Springs Water District
Water COS Rate Study 2020


Fiscal Year
Proposed Rate Revenue Increase
Single Family Residential Tier 1 Use Tier 2 Use Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 1 Tier 2


All Users (0-8) 9+ $1.58 $3.77 $1.65 $3.96 $1.74 $4.16 $1.82 $4.37 $1.91 $4.59
Multi Family (by # Dwelling Units)1


2 DU's (0-12.4) 12.5+ $1.58 $3.77 $1.65 $3.96 $1.74 $4.16 $1.82 $4.37 $1.91 $4.59
3 DU's (0-16.8) 16.9+ $1.58 $3.77 $1.65 $3.96 $1.74 $4.16 $1.82 $4.37 $1.91 $4.59
4 DU's (0-21.2) 21.3+ $1.58 $3.77 $1.65 $3.96 $1.74 $4.16 $1.82 $4.37 $1.91 $4.59


Commercial (by meter size)
5/8" (0-8) 9+ $1.58 $3.77 $1.65 $3.96 $1.74 $4.16 $1.82 $4.37 $1.91 $4.59
1" (0-20) 21+ $1.58 $3.77 $1.65 $3.96 $1.74 $4.16 $1.82 $4.37 $1.91 $4.59
1 1/2" (0-40) 41+ $1.58 $3.77 $1.65 $3.96 $1.74 $4.16 $1.82 $4.37 $1.91 $4.59
2" (0-64) 65+ $1.58 $3.77 $1.65 $3.96 $1.74 $4.16 $1.82 $4.37 $1.91 $4.59


1 - Multi Family unit multiplier = 0.55 for every extra unit; no meter multiplier


Proposed Tier 1 unchanged - lifeline rate
Proposed Tier 2 calculated using weighted average of current tier 2 to tier 4 rates and existing use; surcharge recovers estimated 10% O&M peaking cost
Single Volume Rate calculated using weighted average of current Tier 1 to Tier 4 rates and existing use


5.0%
2024-25


5.0%


Proposed Variable Charges


Volume Rates ($/account bimonthly)
2020-21


5.0%
2021-22


5.0%
2022-23


5.0%
2023-24







Table 10: Water Rate Survey
Sweetwater Springs Water District
Water COS Rate Study 2020


Water Rate Survey


$38.21 
$41.18 


$47.60 $50.25 $50.60 $50.74 $50.94 $53.61 


$65.13 


$0.00


$10.00


$20.00


$30.00


$40.00


$50.00


$60.00


$70.00


North Marin WD
- Novato


Bodega Bay PUD SSWD (Current) Stinson Beach SSWD
(Proposed )


Healdsburg Cal Am -
Larkfield


North Marin WD
- West Marin


Cal Water -
Coast Springs


Single Family Monthly Water Bill Survey FY 2019-20


Fixed Rate Portion Usage Rate Portion assumes area average - 5/8" meter, 5 hcf water use monthly (10 hcf bimonthly)





		Item V-A - Bartle and Wells Associates Rate Study Report Presentation

		Meeting Date: May 7, 2020



		Item V-A.1 - SSWD Water Rate Report 5-1-20

		SSWD Water Rate Report DRAFT 5-1-20.pdf

		Table of Contents

		1 Executive Summary

		1.1 Background

		1.2 Proposition 218

		1.3 Use of Generally Accepted Rate-Making Principles

		1.4 Water System Overview

		1.4.1 Factors driving Rate Increases

		1.4.2 Current Water Rates

		1.4.3 Proposed Water Rates





		2  Water Financial Projections and Rates

		2.1 Water Financial Overview

		2.2 Current Bimonthly Water Rates

		2.3 Current Water Accounts

		2.4 FY 2019 Water Consumption

		2.5 Financial Challenges/Key Drivers of Rate Increases

		2.5.1  Ongoing Operating Cost Inflation

		2.5.2  Water Capital Plan

		2.5.3  Debt Obligations

		2.5.4  Fund Balance and Policies



		2.6 Water Enterprise Revenue Requirements

		2.7 Water Rate Structure Recommendations

		2.7.1  Cost Allocation

		2.7.2  Fixed Service Charge Recommendations

		2.7.3  Water Variable Charge Recommendations



		2.8 Regional Water Survey

		2.9 Estimated Bill Impacts



		3 Conclusion and Recommendations

		3.1 Conclusion

		3.2 Recommendations



		Appendix A: Prop 218 Notice



		SSWD Proposition 218 Notice DRAFT 4-3-20 3 page.pdf

		Proposition 218 Notice to Customers and Property Owners of Record:



		SSWD Water Rate Report DRAFT 5-1-20

		Appendix B: Water Tables



		SSWD Water Rate Study Tables 5-1-20.pdf

		Title

		Current Rates

		Customer Information

		Customer Information (2)

		Budget

		Capital Improvement Plan

		Debt Service

		Fund Balance

		Cash Flow (3)

		Fixed Rates

		Volume Rates

		Water Rate Survey










SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-B 
 
FROM: Ed Fortner, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: May 7, 2020  
 
SUBJECT:  Emergency Response Plan; COVID-19 Pandemic Response
    
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive report related to the Emergency Response 
Plan and approve updates due to the Covid-19 Disaster. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  N/A 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
A contagious disease emergency section draft will be added to the emergency 
response plan exampled by the Covid-19 Disaster we are currently under.  Many 
consideratioins related to Covid-19 response including social distancing, eliminating 
foot traffic at our offices, monitoring staff for symptoms and dealing with each 
individual related situation, hygiene practices, leave issues, coordination with County 
EOC, testing, and potential changes to our Policies and Procedures are included in the 
new ERP section.  The draft ERP section is attached for review and approval.  Also, 
the General Manager sent a letter to the County Health Director seeking guidance 
and support for staff COVID-19 testing.  The Director had the Senior Health Nurse 
get in touch with me and the Health Nurse followed up with an interview of our 
employee who had displayed symptoms.  She praised the measures the District has 
taken and assured us that any future employee with symptoms will be tested with 
the County Health Department support.  The letter sent is attached for review. 
 
Additional temporary changes have been implemented related to the COVID-19 
Disaster.  These measure include suspending water shutoffs allowing a payment 
agreement to avoid late fees, and changes in our notices from “turn off” to 
“Delinquency” notices.  Account billing transfer from tenant to owner will occur if 
delinquency exceeds 115 days.  Past due amounts will not transfer to the owner.  We 
are considering a utility lien on the Owner’s property tax bill if delinquency exceeds 
160 days.  Also, the GM will be the sole signatory on checks, there will be an approval 
line added to the monthly check register for all checks signed by the GM.  
Alternatively, a Director could be the sole signer in the GM’s absence.  A statement 
linked to the EPA is posted on the District website informing our customers that our 
water is safe during this crisis. 
 
 
 







Sweetwater Springs Water District COVID- 19 Risk Minimization and Outbreak 


Response Plan: 4/10/20 


 


    
    Contagious Disease Disaster/ 
Coronavirus (COVID-19) Risk Minimization and Outbreak Response Plan 


 
 
I. Introduction 


Background Information 


Contagious Disease Disaster recovery in the broad sense will require similar responses as the 
COVID-19 Disaster of 2020.  The specific responses to the COVID-19 Crisis follows: 
Coronaviruses are a family of viruses that occur in humans and many species of animals, such as 
camels, cattle, cats, and bats. In fact, the common cold is caused by a coronavirus. A novel form 
of coronavirus, referred to as "severe acute respiratory syndrome coronavirus 2" (SARS- CoV-2) 
first appeared in Wuhan City, China in December 2019, and as of the end of February 2020, has 
been detected in 60 locations internationally. This name was chosen because the virus is genetically 
related to the coronavirus responsible for the SARS outbreak of 2003. The World Health 
Organization (WHO) announced "COVID-19" as the name of the new disease caused by SARS-
CoV-2. COVID-19 has spread rapidly in China, and has now spread to many countries world-
wide, including the United States. COVID-19 has an estimated incubation period of up to 14 days, 
but most commonly about 5 days. The Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) has 
stated that during this incubation period, the person may show little to no symptoms, yet can 
transmit the virus. 
 
COVID-19 is believed to be spread from person to person by the infected person coughing or 
sneezing. This produces respiratory droplets from the infected person being put into the air where 
they can land in the nose or mouth of people in close proximity or be breathed in by people close 
by. This , coupled with its long incubation period, has led to its rapid spread. This primary mode of 
transmittance is why infected persons, and those caring for them, are encouraged to wear masks. 
The most common symptoms of COVID-19 are fever, tiredness, cough, runny nose, and trouble 
breathing (e.g., pneumonia symptoms). Some patients have reported aches and pains, nasal 
congestion, sore throat or diarrhea. Some people become infected but don't develop any 
symptoms and don't feel unwell. Most people (about 80%) recover from the disease without 
needing special treatment. About 1 out of every 6 people that contract COVID-19 become 
seriously ill, and develop difficulty breathing. Although most cases are not life-threatening, 
COVID-19 affects older individuals with chronic health conditions (e.g., high blood pressure, heart 
disease, diabetes) most severely, and can be fatal. Thus, people with fever , cough and difficulty 
breathing should seek medical attention. 
 


People with no respiratory symptoms, such as a cough, do not need to wear a medical mask. The WHO 
recommends the use of masks for people who have symptoms of COVID-19 and for those 
 







2 Sweetwater Springs Water District COVID-19 Risk Minimization and Outbreak 


Response Plan:  4/10/20 


 


caring for individuals who have symptoms, such as cough and fever. The use of masks is crucial for 
health workers and people who are taking care of someone (at home or in a health care facility). 
 
This virus is currently spreading in the United States. It is important to note that the CDC has 
stated that the current global circumstances suggest it is likely that this virus will cause a pandemic 
(i.e., an international epidemic). The COVID-19 situation is a rapidly evolving situation and the 
risk assessment  is being updated regularly by the CDC (https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019- 
ncov/index.html). 
 
Although health officials are working on a vaccine for COVID-19, no vaccine is currently available, 
and likely will not be available until later this year, or early 2021. Consequently, we all need to 
work together to limit the spread of COVID-19 in our community. The information presented in 
this document is taken from the websites listed in the references section of this plan, which also 
serve as sources for additional information for District employees. 
 
All Federal, State, and County orders and guidance will be followed. 
 
Purpose and Intended Use for this Plan 
 
This COVID-19 Risk Minimization and Outbreak Response Plan (Plan) has been developed by the 
Sweetwater Springs Water District (District) to best protect its employees against the risk (current 
and future) posed by COVID-19. The specific objectives of this plan are to: 1) identify precautionary 
measures that District employees can implement to best protect themselves and each other against 
contracting and spreading of COVID-19, and 2) to maintain critical operations of the District if 
COVID-19 becomes established in Sonoma County. Following the introduction, this plan has three 
major sections. 
 


• Section II: Precautionary Measures to Reduce the Spread of Illness in the Workplace 
identifies precautionary measures that both the District and its employees can implement 
to minimize the risk of workplace exposure to COVID-19. 


 
• Section Ill: Tiered Plan for Maintaining District Operations provides a tiered risk-level 


approach to modifying District operations while minimizing employee risk of workplace 
exposure to COVID-19 and spread to others within and outside the office, and to maintain 
critical District operations should an outbreak of COVID-19 occur in Sonoma County. 


 
• Section IV: References provides the websites from which much of the information herein 


was obtained. District employees and management can use these sites to get more 
information and CDC and WHO updates. 


 
The General Manager reserves the right to modify any element of this Plan at any time based on 
his discretion, changed circumstances, and/or direction or requests made by health authorities or 
other agencies. 
 
 
 
 



http://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-





3 Sweetwater Springs Water District COVID-19 Risk Minimization and Outbreak 


Response Plan:  4/10/20 


 


II. Precautionary Measures to Reduce the Spread of COVID-19 in the Workplace 
 
The following is a list of actions recommended by the CDC and other State and County health authorities 
that people should implement to reduce their risk of contracting COVID-19 and to reduce its 
spread should they, or others they interact with, contract the virus. 
 
Precautionary Actions for Immediate Implementation by District Employees 
 
The recommended precautionary actions listed below are similar to, or the same as, measures we 
are all familiar with to minimize our annual risk of contracting influenza (i.e., the flu). Other 
precautionary measures have been added that are specific to COVID-19 at this time, as 
recommended by the CDC and other health authorities. 
 


• Employees who have symptoms of acute respiratory illness (i.e., fever and cough, and 
possibly trouble breathing) need to notify their supervisor and stay home and not come 
back to work until they are free of fever (100.4°F) or greater (using an oral thermometer), 
signs of fever, or other respiratory illness symptoms for at least 24 hours, without the use 
of fever-reducing or other symptom-altering medicines. 


 
• If you have a family member that becomes ill with acute respiratory illness symptoms, 


notify your supervisor, who may request that you stay home for an appropriate period of 
time prior to returning to the workplace. Keep your supervisor apprised of your/family 
member's recovery. 


 
• If you come down with a cough, fever, shortness of breath or other acute respiratory 


illness symptoms while at work, separate yourself from your co-workers, notify your 
supervisor, and immediately go home. 


 
• All employees should practice the following respiratory etiquette and related practices to 


minimize their risk of contracting and spreading COVID-19. 
 


o Avoid close contact with people who are sick. Maintain 6 ft or greater distance 
between yourself and anyone who is coughing or sneezing. 


o Cover your nose and mouth when you cough or sneeze with a tissue and then 
throw the tissue away or do so into your elbow or shoulder if no tissue is available. 


o Wash your hands frequently with soap and water for at least 20 seconds. 


o If soap and water is not available, use hand sanitizer with at least 60% alcohol. 


o Avoid touching your eyes, nose and mouth with unwashed hands. 
 


o Put away any community candy jars. 


o Routinely clean all frequently touched surfaces in your workspace, such as 
workstations, mouse, desktop phones, cell phones, countertops, and doorknobs. 
Use disinfecting wipes to wipe-down common-surface places, where appropriate. 


 







4 Sweetwater Springs Water District COVID-19 Risk Minimization and Outbreak 


Response Plan:  4/10/20 


 


Use cleaning products that contain >60% alcohol, 0.5% hydrogen peroxide, 0.1% sodium 
hypochlorite (bleach), or other active ingredients known to kill viruses. 


• Check the "CDC's Traveler's Health Notices" [https://wwwnc.cdc. gov/travel] for the latest 
guidance and recommendations before you travel to other countries. Avoid travel to level 
3 and 4 countries until the CDC has indicated that it is safe to do so. 


 
• Do not travel by airplane, bus, cruise ship or other means with large numbers of people if 


you are experiencing symptoms of acute respiratory illness. 
 
Precautionary Actions for Immediate Implementation by District Management 
 


• Stay aware of the latest information on the COVID-19 outbreak, available on the WHO 
and CDC websites. State alerts and orders, and County alerts and orders. 


 
• Provide tissues and no-touch disposal receptacles for use by all employees. 


 
• Provide alcohol-based hand sanitizers that contain at least 60% alcohol at various locations 


in the workplace, including in trucks and the office space. 
 


• Provide disposable wipes for employee use for wiping down frequently touched surfaces 
within the workplace. 


 
• Keep Union notified of any changes to policies or procedures 


 


• Keep District IDs available for Emergency/ Essential personnel needs. 
 
Ill. Tiered Plan for Maintaining District Operations 
 
This section identifies how District operations, including individual employee roles, may need to 
change if COVID-19 becomes established in Sonoma County. The co-equal objectives for this 
portion of the plan are to: 1) best protect employees against the spread of COVID-19, and 2) 
maintain critical District water supply operations for the community. The plan for maintaining District 
operations is tiered based on the COVID-19 risk level in Sonoma County, as discussed in greater 
detail below. 
 
Risk Level 1: Continued Increases in the Number of Confirmed Cases of COVID-19 in the 
United States and California, and no Confirmed Cases in Sonoma County and Surrounding 
Counties. 
 
Trigger Points: Risk Level 1 shall be declared by the General Manager when confirmed cases of 
COVID-19 were announced in the United States and in the state of California. 
 
Under Risk Level 1, the risk to employees of contracting COVID-19 is low and thus the District 
shall conduct normal business operations, with the addition of implementing the precautionary 
measures identified in Section II of this Plan. 
 







5 Sweetwater Springs Water District COVID-19 Risk Minimization and Outbreak 


Response Plan:  4/10/20 


 


Risk Level 2: Continued Increases in the Confirmed Cases of COVID-19 in the United States, 
California, and few Confirmed Cases in Sonoma and/or Surrounding Counties. 
 
Trigger Points: Risk Level 2 shall be declared by the General Manager when confirmed cases of COVID-
19 are announced in Sonoma County and/or surrounding counties. 
 
Under Risk Level 2, the risk to employees of contracting COVID-19 remains relatively low, but the risk 
level is increasing due to increasing numbers of confirmed cases in the country, state, Sonoma County 
and surrounding counties. 
 
In addition to the actions being implemented under Risk level 1, including the precautionary measures 
identified in Section II of this Plan, actions to be implemented at Risk Level 2 include, but may not be 
limited to, the following. 
 


• Disinfect identified surfaces and bathrooms more frequently. 
o Implement employee efforts to sanitize identified administrative office surfaces. 


• Those collecting money from the public are to wear disposable latex medical gloves or hand 
sanitize after each transaction. 


o Remove and dispose of gloves and wash hands prior to eating or touching common-
surface places within the office. 


• Limit routine in-person meetings in favor of conference calls. 
• Ensure all supplies for treating water are fully stocked. 
• Temporary flexible workplace and leave policies, and other relevant aspects of this Plan, shall 


be communicated to all District employees. 
• If an employee does not exhibit COVID-19 symptoms but becomes sick (e.g., headache and/or 


upset stomach), the employee shall stay home until no longer contagious, a minimum of 14 
days. The General Manager will direct the employee to go home if the employee is exhibiting 
sickness symptoms at work. In either case, the employee will not be compensated while 
absent from work unless they use leave time or leave is granted by the General Manager. 


 
• The General Manager will coordinate with CalWarn and local agencies including water 


agencies to discuss procedures and mutual aid. 
 
At Risk Level 2, District management will start to hold meetings on Risk Level 3 and 4 scenarios, and 
through these meeting discussions will determine whether the District is ready to implement the 
necessary modified operations for those higher risk levels. These scenario exercises are intended to 
identify short comings in the District's preparedness and to focus near-term efforts on remedying the 
"holes" in the response planning as quickly as possible. If not already in place, authorities, triggers, and 
procedures for activating and terminating key elements of this Plan will be put in place.







6 Sweetwater Springs Water District COVID-19 Risk Minimization and Outbreak 


Response Plan:  4/10/20 


 


 
Risk Level 3: Continued Increases in the Number of Confirmed Cases of COVID-19 in the 
United States, California, and Numerous Cases in Sonoma County and Surrounding Counties. 
 
Trigger Points: Risk Level 3 will be declared by the General Manager if COVID-19 reaches or 
approaches epidemic levels in the United States and numerous confirmed cases of COVID-19 
are announced for Sonoma County and surrounding counties. 
 
We are currently operating under Risk Level 3, due to numerous confirmed cases of COVID-19 in 
Sonoma County and surrounding counties. 
 
At Risk Level 3, COVID-19 may be declared an epidemic or pandemic by the CDC and local health 
authorities in the United States and California and numerous cases have been confirmed in people 
living in Sonoma County and surrounding counties. As such, the risk of contracting COVID-19 for 
District employees is no longer low. At the direction of the General Manager, the District will now 
further modify operations to minimize all contact of employees with the general public and will 
focus on maintaining essential duties necessary to maintain water service to the public, with the 
minimal number of employees. 
 
Operational scenarios will now focus on how best to maintain essential services with reduced 
staff, should one or more District employees contract the virus. Additional operational 
modifications to be implemented at Risk Level 3 shall include, but not necessarily be limited to, the 
following. 
 


• Shut down foot traffic to office, allowing payment online, over the phone, by mail, or 
through the mail slot. 


o Notify the public by website, media, answering service.  Close-down the 


administrative office to the general public. 


o Notify other local agencies and vendors of the District's office closure to the public. 


• Board meetings shall be postponed or conducted by teleconference (if possible) rather 
than by in-person meetings. 


• Implement practices developed, including less interaction with homeowners, methods 
of leaving door notices, etc. to increase physical distance among employees and 


between employees and the public, as further directed in Attachment A. 


o Separate departments and minimize in-person interactions between District 
administrative, operations, and distribution employees to the maximum extent 
possible. 


• Within departments, minimize face-to-face interactions of key personnel as 
well. 


• Coordinate by email, phone, and text messages whenever possible and 
effective. 







7 Sweetwater Springs Water District 


 


COVID-19 Risk Minimization and Outbreak 


Response Plan:  4/10/20 


 


 
Risk Level 4: Initial Confirmed Case(s) of COVID-19 Among District Employees. 
 
Trigger Point: Risk Level 4 will be declared by the General Manager if one or more District 
employees, or an immediate family member of an employee, test positive for COVID-19. 
 
Because of the small size of the District, operating out of a single administrative office, one or 
more District employees (or their immediate family members) being confirmed to have contracted 
COVID-19 is a situation that poses a relatively high risk to other District employees of contracting the 
virus. 
 
In addition to the actions and operational procedures already being implemented, additional 
operational modifications/actions to be implemented at Risk Level 4 shall include, but not necessarily 
be limited to, the following. 
 


• All employees will remain home until directed otherwise by the General Manager. 


o Each employee will be compensated by the District up to 14 working days without 
having to use personal time off or vacation time until the employee is cleared to 
return to work by a health official or the General Manager. 


o Employees not exhibiting symptoms of COVID-19 will be on-call for work activities, 
at the direction of the General Manager, Field Manager, or their Administrative 
Manager. All on-call employees must respond and be at work as stated in the MOU 
if called upon to work. 


o Any employees reporting to work shall wear a face mask and gloves when 
interacting with other parties. 


• Employee(s) that have contracted COVID-19 (or employees who have family members 
that have confirmed COVID-19) will not be allowed to return to work until they can provide 
a doctor's note, clearing them of COVID-19. 


• If an employee has been confirmed to have COVID-19, the General Manager will inform 
other employees, using the phone tree, of their possible exposure to COVID-19, but will 
maintain confidentiality of the infected employee. All District employees will be instructed 
to stay home. 


• Employees should refer to the CDC guidance for "how to conduct  a risk assessment" of 
their potential exposure (CDC Website: https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019- 
ncov/summarv.html#risk-assessment). 



http://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-





 


• Board meetings shall continue to be postponed or conducted by teleconference (if 
possible) rather than by in-person meetings. 


• Implement any potential remaining actions identified to minimize in-person contact among 
employees and between employees and the public. 


• Implement all identified minimum essential functions necessary to maintain only essential 
District services, with essential personnel, as further defined in Attachment B. 


• CIP work is temporarily suspended. Other actions may be implemented at the direction of 
the General Manager or Assistant General Manager, the CDC, or local health authorities. 


 
VI. References 
Websites that contributed information to this plan are listed below. They also serve as reference 
sites for employees to obtain further information about COVID-19. 


https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/specific-groups/guidance-busi   ness- 
response .html?CDC   AA    reNa l=https%3A%2F%2Fwww .cdc.gov%2Fcoronavi 
rus%2F2019- ncov%2Fguidance-business-response .html 


https://www .osha .gov/SLTC/covid-19/ 
 
https://www .en n.com/2020/02/16/health/coronavi rus-how-to-protect -you rsel f-trnd/index .htmI 
 
https://q 13fox.com/2020/02/26/how-you-and-your-workp l ace-can-protect -yourse lves-from-the-  
novel -coronav irus/ 


https://www .livescience.com/how -long-coronavirus-last-surfaces .html https://www.who 


.int/news-room/q-a -deta il/g-a-coronavi ruses 


https://www.shrm.org/resourcesandtoo  ls/legal-and-compliance/employment- law/pages/address-  
workp lace-coron avirus-concerns. Aspx 
 
https://socoemergency.org/ 


https ://travel .state .govIcontent/travel/en/trave ladvisori es/trave l advisories .htmI.htmI 


https://hrexecutive .com/coronavirus-hrs-role/ 


 
 
Approved and implemented 
 
 
Ed Fortner 
General Manager 
Sweetwater Springs Water District 
efortner@sweetwatersprings.com 
http://www.sweetwatersprings.com/ 
707-869-4000 
 


 
 



http://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/specific-groups/guidance-busi

http://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/specific-groups/guidance-busi

mailto:efortner@sweetwatersprings.com

http://www.sweetwatersprings.com/





 


Attachment A 
Action Plan for Risk Level 3 







 


Attachment A 
Action Plan for Risk Level 3 


 
 
 


Operations: 
 


Operations personnel will isolate themselves into the following groups.  There shall be no person- 
to-person interactions between these two groups. 


 
Group 1:  Treatment a n d  D i s t r i b u t i o n staff 


 
 
 
• The Distribution/  F i e l d Department will generally remain back in the Field with minimal use of 


District Offices. The Department will respond in person to service calls only for the most 
serious situations such as no water service and/or water line breaks. Customers who have 
water quality complaints or pressure problems will be responded to with telephone calls in a 
concerted effort to resolve the problems. Meter reading and basic water distribution maintenance 
activities will continue to the extent that employees can maintain safe distances from the 
general public. The Utility Department will continue to conduct CIP work with the 
understanding that employees need to maintain safe distances from the general public. 


 
Administration: 


 
Administrative personnel will continue to conduct business as normal, except that the 
Administration Building will be closed to the public.  All interaction with the public will be by 
telephone or email. 


 
Administrative personnel will isolate themselves from Operations personnel as much as 
possible and all possible contact will be conducted through telephone or email. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 


Sweetwater Springs Water District A-1 COVID-19 Risk Minimization and Outbreak 
Response Plan:  4/10/20 







 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Attachment B 
Action Plan for Risk Level 4 







 


Attachment B 
Action Plan for Risk Level 


4 
 
 
 


Operations: 
 


Operations will be suspended for the duration of the quarantine period.  The   length   of   the 
quarantine period will be determined by the General Manager based on the circumstances at the 
time (including prevalence of COVID-19 in the community), and input from health  authorities. 
(estimated to be approximately 14-28 days).  During this time: 


 
• Two Distribution Operators will conduct patrols throughout Service Area during normal 


business hours. 
 


• All Distribution Operators not exhibiting symptoms of COVID-19 will be on call. 
 


After the quarantine period, as declared by the General Manager, Operations staff cleared to 
return to work will resume duties commensurate to the declared Risk Level. 


 
Administration: 


 
Administration operations will be suspended for the duration of the quarantine period (estimated 
to be approximately 14-28 days).  During this time: 


 
• The Administrative Manager will only perform essential duties such as payroll, necessary 


AP vendor payments, and procurement through remote access from home. 
 


After the quarantine period, Administrative staff cleared to return to work will resume duties 
commensurate to the declared Risk Level. 


 
 









		Item V-B - Emergency Response Plan, Covid-19 Update

		Meeting Date: May 7, 2020



		Item V-B.1 - Emergency Response Plan Update Corona Virus Plan

		We are currently operating under Risk Level 3, due to numerous confirmed cases of COVID-19 in Sonoma County and surrounding counties.

		Operations:

		Administration:



		Item V-B.2 - Letter to Sonoma County Health Director






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-C 
 
FROM: Ed Fortner, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: May 7, 2020 
 
SUBJECT: Economic Impact on District Revenues of Temporarily Suspending Customer 
Disconnects for Non-Payment 
 


 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 


(Discussion item only.) 
 


FISCAL IMPACT: 
(Unknown.) 


 
DISCUSSION: 


 
At the April Board meeting, the Board discussed discontinuing customer disconnects 
during this global COVID-19 pandemic and in light of the Governor’s Executive Order 
N-42-20. Staff was asked to track the economic impact on the District’s water 
revenues from this change in the delinquency process. 
 
Discontinuing customer disconnects is in effect extending a line of credit to our 
customers - like a water credit card with no minimum payment required.  Ideally 
customers will pay their past due water bills when their stimulus or unemployment 
checks come in, or when they are able to return to their normal income.  In the 
meantime, however, their water bill will balloon, not just from deferred bill charges 
but from accrued delinquency fees on unpaid balances.  Even with the best of 
intentions, it’s not easy to catch up on unpaid bills. 
 
To help our customers, the District is also giving customers the option of making a 
“COVID-19 Agreement”.  The Covid-19 Agreement allows customers to completely 
defer a bill they can’t pay now and instead pay it in six installments added to their 
future water bills over the next year.  They are still responsible for the bill, but it will 
put off accrual of delinquency fees and make the catch-up process more 
manageable. 
 
Before discussing the economic impact of these changes to our delinquency 
process, staff would like to state in no uncertain terms that it has felt very 
appropriate to offer our customers an option to keep their water on during 
this time of economic uncertainty for so many.   
 







Economic Impact of Suspending Disconnects 2 
May 7, 2020 


Now, on to the numbers. 
 
Realistically, some customers will never pay their bill.  This has always been the 
case, but with the financial difficulties many are having due to the COVID-19 
pandemic coupled with the suspension of customer disconnects as a means of 
getting customers to pay, staff predicts the dollar value of unpaid bills will 
rise.  Staff will use the number of and growth of unpaid bills as the measure of 
economic impact on District revenues of temporarily suspending customer 
disconnects.  Specifically, staff will track the dollar value of past due bills at the time 
the customer’s next bill is mailed out.  In other words, a customer who still hasn’t 
paid their February bill at the time their April bill is mailed out would have the dollar 
value of their February bill plus delinquency fees added to the District’s total of past 
due bills. 
 
Below is a brief history of how this dollar value is evolving. 
 
The District bills customers every two months in arrears.  This means that if a 
customer is mailed a bill on April 15, it’s for base rate and water use from the prior 
two months – in this example February 15 - April 15.  Historically, all customers -- 
100% - either paid their bill or were turned off for non-payment before their next bill 
was mailed.  In 2019, out of approximately 21,600 bills mailed, 80 bills resulted in 
turnoff/disconnect. The large majority of turnoffs pay their bill – including a $50 
reconnect fee -- and have their water reconnected shortly after they have been 
disconnected.   Of the remainder, some have moved out of the District and never 
closed their account.  Fewer still are sent to Collections. 
 
Last year, California passed the Water Shutoff Protection Act - SB998.  This was 
discussed at our January and February Board meetings.  A big change for the 
District is that the new law required at least 60 days pass before a customer is 
disconnected for non-payment.  This meant that we could no longer disconnect a 
customer for non-payment prior to mailing out their next bill.  The District began 
implementation of this new requirement on the January 15 bills.  On the March 15 
billing, there were 10 customers who had still not paid their January 15 bill.  Their 
past due bills totaled $1,564.72.  The turnoff date was set for March 23.  Three 
customers ended up getting turned off, and all three paid their delinquent amounts 
and have reconnected. 
 
On April 2, 2020, Governor Newsome signed Executive Order N-42-20, effectively 
banning customer disconnects as part of the response to the COVID-19 pandemic.  
We implemented this immediately.  On the April 15 billing, there were 24 customers 
who had still not paid their February 15 bill.  Their past due bills totaled $4,096.   
 
These figures are summarized in the table below: 
 
 
 
 







Economic Impact of Suspending Disconnects 3 
May 7, 2020 


 
Tracking the Economic Impact of Suspending Water 


Disconnects for Non-payment 
 


Billing Date 


# of Customers 
whose prior bill was 


still unpaid when 
next bill mailed 


$ Value of Past Due 
Amounts** 


(including unpaid customer 
deposits) 


Notes 


2/15/2020 0 $0 Historical disconnect 
procedure 


3/15/2020 10 $1,565 
SB-998 extended 
time before 
disconnect 


4/15/2020 24 $4,096 
Executive Order N-
42-20 Disconnects 
completely 
suspended 


 
** Customers who sign a COVID-19 Agreement with the District are not included in this amount. 
 


 
Going forward staff will update his table and include it in the General Manager’s 
report. 
 
As this potential lost revenue is tracked, the Board may consider implementing the 
District’s right to lien property on the property owner’s tax bill.  Board Counsel has 
given guidance that minor changes in our policy would be required with Board 
approval to begin the process for uncollected water billings.  If the Board desires, 
the GM can bring language in a resolution for the next Board meeting for 
consideration. 
 


 








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-D 
 
FROM: Ed Fortner, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: May 7, 2020 
 
SUBJECT: ACTUAL VS. BUDGETED (OPERATIONS AND CAPITAL) REPORT THRU MARCH 
31, 2020 (75%) 
 


 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 


(Discussion item only.) 
 


FISCAL IMPACT: 
(None.) 


 
 
DISCUSSION: 


 
This report presents the 3rd quarter actual revenues and expenses.  It comprises 
75% of the year by time and so we compare the revenues and expenses to that 
standard. 
 
Operating Budget: 
 
3Q Revenue is greater than 75% of budgeted amount 
 
Water Sales, the largest revenue line item, came in at 2.3% ($57,990) ahead of 
the 75% schedule which is in the range of normal.  At the end of the 3Q we have 
sold 3.7% less water than last year during the same period.   
 
Overall revenues* are 4.8% ($97,454) more than the 75% schedule with higher 
than budgeted revenues in all non-operating revenue categories. 
 
*Not including the $500,000 in loan proceeds from Policy Reserves used for the District’s PERS 
unfunded liability 
 
 
3Q Expenditures are higher than 75% of budgeted amount.  
 
As of the 3Q expenditures are 1.0% ($22,143) more than budgeted.   
 
Discussed last quarter was the Lower Harrison Tank emergency project, 
which will leave the Tanks and Facilities line item significantly 







Actual vs, Budgeted thru March 31, 2020 2 
May 7, 2020 


underbudgeted this year.  The engineering and construction contracts for 
the Lower Harrison Tank emergency parking area rehabilitation total 
$181,209; but only $12,000 was budgeted for this project.  As of the 3Q, 
the District has spent $30,010 on this project. 
 
In addition, during the 3Q the District spent just over $10,000 on an tank 
inspection and cleaning, and $2,262 on a booster pump for the Crespo tank.   
 
For more detail on all the budget line items, please refer to the attached Actual vs. 
Budgeted breakdown provided with your packet. 
 
Capital Budget: 
 
The 3Q Capital Budget (Table 2) is typical the 3rd Quarter - we have received the 
first installment of the annual assessment from the county and made the first 
payments on our debt.  The second installment of the annual assessment which 
we will receive soon will balance the debt expenses.  We see no major differences 
from the approved budget.  Balancing of the funds will occur as we near the end 
of the fiscal year.   
 
FUNDS AT THE COUNTY 
 
Table 3. Fund and Loan Balances show a comparison of the budgeted and 3rd 
Quarter balances.  Also attached is the County Fund Balances for the 3rd Quarter.  
Table 3 includes all the funds listed in the County Fund Balances and also the funds 
at PARS and the USDA Bond Debt at WestAmerica. Table 3 is typical for the 3rd 
Quarter of the fiscal year.   
 
 
 
 







FY 2019-20 
Actual


2019-20 
Budget


$ Over 
Budget for 


the Year
% of Budget Notes (Underlined notes reflect 


changes since last report)
*=Ch
ged


Ordinary Income/Expense  
Income


OPERATING REVENUE
4031 · Water Sales


4031.10· Base Rate 1,258,723 1,644,824 -386,101 76.53%  4031.11· Current Charges 510,896  633,846 -122,950 80.6%  4031.12· Capital Debt Reduction Charge 219,661 296,383 -76,722 74.11%  
Total 4031 · Water Sales 1,989,279 2,575,053 -585,774 77.25% This is a cash water sales figure.    


Total OPERATING REVENUE 1,989,279 2,575,053 -585,774 77.25%  


NON-OPERATING REVENUE
1700 · Interest 14,309 8,000 6,309 178.87%   
4448 · Policy Reserve Loan Proceeds 500,000 0 500,000 100.0%


In the 2Q, PERS UL payment accelerated via a loan 
from District Policy Reserves


3600 · Construction New Services 18,746 7,000 11,746 267.8% This line item was underbudgeted this year. *
3601 · Construction - Service Upgrades 9,783 3,000 6,783 326.1% This line item was underbudgeted this year. *
4032 · Rent 80,325 105,000 -24,675 76.5%   
4227 · SCWA reimbursement 2,995 0 2,995 100.0%  
4040 · Miscellaneous Income 6,681 1,500 5,181 445.43%


In the 1Q, the District received $4,202 for a meter 
relocation at a customer's request.  


Total NON-OPERATING REVENUE 632,839 124,500 508,339 508.31%  Percentage without UL 74.14%


Total Income 2,622,119 2,699,553 -77,434 97.13%  Percentage without UL 54%


Expense
OPERATING EXPENSES


SALARY & BENEFITS
Salary


5910 · Wages 627,950 903,046 -275,096 69.54%   
5912 · Overtime 21,749 34,307 -12,558 63.4%   5916 · On-Call Pay 28,120 34,950 -6,830 80.46%
5918 · Extra help - Contract 28,057 34,100 -6,043 82.28%  


Total Salary 705,877 1,006,403 -300,526 70.14%


Benefits
5500 · Flex Spending (Flex spending monies p  4,672 0 4,672 100.0%
5920 · Retirement net employee share 52,393 95,927 -43,534 54.62% This item was likely overbudgeted this year.  
5920.4 · Retirement - UL Mandatory 55,451 55,451 0 100.0% In the 1Q, the mandatory UL payment was paid for 


the year.  
5920.5 · Retirement - UL Extra payment 500,000 64,549 435,451 774.61%


In the 2Q, PERS UL payment accelerated via a loan 
from District Policy Reserves


5922 · Payroll Taxes - Employer Paid 11,309 16,761 -5,452 67.47%  
5930 · Health/Dental/Vision/AFLAC Ins. 182,264 237,000 -54,736 76.91%   
5931 · Retiree Health 7,672 7,680 -8 99.9% In the 1Q, annual contribution to CERBT ($3,000) 


made.  
5941 · Life insurance - GM 2,000 0 2,000 100.0%   
5940 · Workers Comp Insurance 34,773 37,000 -2,227 93.98% In the 1Q, workers' compensation insurance was 


paid for the year.  
Total Benefits 850,535 514,368 336,167 165.36%  Percentage without UL 47.08%


Total SALARY & BENEFITS 1,556,412 1,520,771 35,641 102.34% Percentage without UL 48.31%


SERVICES & SUPPLIES
Communications


6040-I · Internet service 2,024 2,350 -326 86.13%
6040-C · Cell Phones 3,077 4,900 -1,823 62.79%


6040-P · Pagers & Radios 1,884 680 1,204 277.1% In the 1Q, the District had unbudgeted maintenance 
work done on the radios ($1,588)  


6040-T · Telephones 17,170 22,900 -5,730 74.98%   


Sweetwater Springs Water District
FY 2019-20 Operating Budget Variances as of March 31, 2020 (75%)


Note: Document is cumulative.  Changes to text made from previous reports are *'d in the "Changed" column and underlined.


 Page 1 of 3







FY 2019-20 
Actual


2019-20 
Budget


$ Over 
Budget for 


the Year
% of Budget Notes (Underlined notes reflect 


changes since last report)
*=Ch
ged


Sweetwater Springs Water District
FY 2019-20 Operating Budget Variances as of March 31, 2020 (75%)


Note: Document is cumulative.  Changes to text made from previous reports are *'d in the "Changed" column and underlined.


Total Communications 24,155 30,830 -6,675 78.35%


Insurances
6101 · Gen. Liability 45,214 44,000 1,214 102.76% (In the 1Q, paid for the year. Underbudgeted this 


year.)  
Total Insurances 45,214 44,000 1,214 102.76%


Maint/Rep - Office & Vehicles
6140 · Vehicle Maintenance 5,613 21,000 -15,387 26.73%   
6151 · Office Maintenance 4,201 6,000 -1,799 70.01%   


Total Maint/Rep - Office & Vehicles 9,814 27,000 -17,186 36.35%


Maint/Repair - Facilities
6085 · Janitorial Services 6,602 8,800 -2,198 75.03%
6100 · SCADA system 1,507 5,000 -3,493 30.13%   
6180 · Distribution System Repairs 35,608 50,000 -14,392 71.22%   
6235 · Treatment Sys/Well Repairs 55,404 50,000 5,404 110.81%


In the 2Q the District rehabbed El Bonita Well 6 that 
required replacing the pump and motor ($43,304).  
One well rehab was budgeted for this fiscal year at 
$18,000.


6143 · Generator Maintenance 2,145 1,000 1,145 214.53% The fire emergency resulted in much higher 
generator fuel amounts being used.


Total Maint/Repair - Facilities 101,266 114,800 -13,534 88.21%


Miscellaneous Expenses
6280 · Memberships 9,914 12,020 -2,106 82.48%   
6303 · Claims 0 1,500 -1,500 0.0%   
6593 · Governmental Fees 17,591 15,000 2,591 117.27%


In the 2Q the District paid system fees for the year 
($8,122)


Total Miscellaneous Expenses 27,505 28,520 -1,015 96.44%


Office Expense
6410 · Postage 14,383 17,000 -2,617 84.61%   
6430 · Printing Expense 5,281 7,500 -2,219 70.42%   
6461 · Office Supplies 4,168 6,000 -1,832 69.46%   
6800 · Subscriptions/Legal Notices 1,623 1,100 523 147.56%


In the 2Q unbudgeted ads for the Maintenance 
Worker position left this line item underbudgeted.  


6890 · Computers/Software 1,254 2,500 -1,246 50.16%
Total Office Expense 26,709 34,100 -7,391 78.33%


Operating Supplies  


6300 · Chemicals 11,314 20,000 -8,686 56.57%   
6880 · Tools and Equipment 5,006 7,000 -1,994 71.52%   6881 · Safety Equipment 258 1,200 -942 21.5%


Total Operating Supplies 16,578 28,200 -11,622 58.79%


Professional Services
6514 · Lab/Testing Fees 9,225 12,500 -3,275 73.8%   
6570 · Consultant Fees 33,340 58,000 -24,661 57.48%   
6590 · Engineering 1,175 0 1,175 100.0%   
6610 · Legal 20,145 20,000 145 100.72%   
6630 · Audit/Accounting 25,346 42,000 -16,654 60.35%


In the 1Q, the District changed credit card 
processing banks at a considerable cost savings., 
which will leave this line item overbudgeted this 
year.


 
Total Professional Services 89,231 132,500 -43,270 67.34%


Rents & Leases
6820 · Equipment 909 3,300 -2,391 27.54%  


6840 · Building & Warehouse 24,825 29,790 -4,965 83.33% 1Q Bldg. rent paid thru October.  


 Page 2 of 3







FY 2019-20 
Actual


2019-20 
Budget


$ Over 
Budget for 


the Year
% of Budget Notes (Underlined notes reflect 


changes since last report)
*=Ch
ged


Sweetwater Springs Water District
FY 2019-20 Operating Budget Variances as of March 31, 2020 (75%)


Note: Document is cumulative.  Changes to text made from previous reports are *'d in the "Changed" column and underlined.


Total Rents & Leases 25,734 33,090 -7,356 77.77%


Transportation & Travel
7120 · Seminars & related travel 1,675 3,650 -1,975 45.9%
7201 · Vehicle Gas 17,877 20,000 -2,123 89.38%
7300 · Travel Reimbursements 6,276 7,400 -1,124 84.81%   Total Transportation & Travel 25,828 31,050 -5,222 83.18%


Uniforms
6021.1 · Boots 1,367 1,500 -133 91.13%
6021.3 · T-shirts 1,757 1,800 -43 97.62% In the 1Q, t-shirts were purchased for the year.  
6021.4 · Jackets 93 240 -147 38.6%   Total Uniforms 3,217 3,540 -323 90.87%


Utilities
7320 · Electricity 81,787 110,000 -28,213 74.35%   
7321 · Propane 2,110 3,000 -890 70.33%   Total Utilities 83,897 113,000 -29,103 74.25%


Total SERVICES & SUPPLIES 479,147 620,630 -141,483 77.2%


Total OPERATING EXPENSES 2,035,559 2,141,401 -105,842 95.06%


FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES


8511.1 · Tank/Facilities Sites 48,147 24,000 24,147 200.61%


In the 2Q, the District spent $6,039 on the Lower 
Harrison parking area project, budgeted at $12,000.
In the 3Q, the District spent $24,471 on the Lower 
Harrison project, plus $10,370 on tank 
inspection/cleaning (unbudgeted), and $2262 on a 
booster pump for the Crespo Tank (unbudgeted).


*
8511.2 - Leasehold Improvements 0 0 0 0.0%   
8517 · Field/office equipment 0 0 0 0.0%   
8573 · Vehicles 0 0 0 0.0%


  
Total FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES 48,147 24,000 24,147 200.61%


Total Expense 2,083,706 2,165,401 -81,695 96.23%


Net Ordinary Income 538,413 534,152 4,261 100.8%


Other Income/Expense
Other Expense


TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS
8620.7 · Tfers to CIRF for CDR Revenue 296,383 296,383 0 100.0%   
8620.3 · Tfers to CIRF 0 190,000 -190,000 0.0%   8620.5 · Tfers to Building Fund 0 15,000 -15,000 0.0%
8620.2 · Tfers to In-House Constr 25,000 25,000 0 100.0%


Total TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS
321,383 526,383 -205,000 61.06%


  


 Page 3 of 3







Jul 19 - Mar 20 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget Notes
Income


 
New Construction flat charges revenue 23,974.80 27,000.00 -3,025.20 88.8%
CY Direct Charges 403,541.74 710,000.00 -306,458.26 56.84%
PY Direct Charges 8,436.98 40,000.00 -31,563.02 21.09%
Interest Revenue 20,882.89 25,000.00 -4,117.11 83.53%
Tfer from Operations - CDR 296,383.00 296,383.00 0.00 100.0%
Tfer from Operations - In House Constr. 25,000.00 25,000.00 0.00 100.0%
Tfer from Operations - Surplus Income 0.00 190,000.00 -190,000.00 0.0%


Total Income 778,219.41 1,313,383.00 -535,163.59 59.25%


Expense
 


 
In-House Construction 14,903.95
CIP 2019 (MRTP Filter replacement) 62,471.67 0.00 62,471.67 100.0%


Principal - State Loans 135,234.85 146,619.00 -11,384.15 92.24%
Principal Pymt -USDA  Bonds 27,622.00 98,821.00 -71,199.00 27.95%
Principal - Priv. Placemnt Loan 162,570.43 216,062.00 -53,491.57 75.24%
Principal-2013 Cap One Rev Bond 359,000.00 566,558.00 -207,558.00 63.37%
Capital Interest 326,377.54


Total Expense 1,088,180.44 1,028,060.00 60,120.44 105.85%


Net Capital Income -309,961.03 285,323.00 -595,284.03 -108.64%


Sweetwater Springs Water District
FY 2019-20 Capital Budget Variances as of March 31, 2020 (75%)







 


Non-Operating Balances FY 2019-20 and Reserves Above Policy
 


  


TOTAL at 
COUNTY ↓


GRAND TOTAL: 
COUNTY + USDA 
+ PARS/CERBT


FY 2019-20 Policy Reserves: 
$1,379,359


Reserves Above 
Policy Net Loans from 


Reserves


$42,621.30 $214,170.83 $245,519.11 $25,850.00 $753,494.00 $29,235.71 $789,646.59 $146,945.40 $786,011.28 $105,662.08 $2,776,702.09 $3,139,156.30 1,759,797.30


NAME


CERBT 
(Contributions are 
part of Reserves)


PARS
(Contributions are 
part of Reserves)


Operations
Bldg Fund
(part of Policy 


Reserves)


FY 2019-20 
POLICY 


RESERVES: 
$1,379,359


In-house 
Construction


Capital 
Improvements


State Loan 
58340


Cap One Bonds 
and Citizens 


Bank Loan Debt


USDA Bond 
Debt


(at WestAmerica)


Policy Reserve Loans 
Outstanding:


$500,000 (Oct 2019)


CONTRIBUTIONS: CONTRIBUTIONS: ($1,116,991)


Fund
$36,518 $200,000 76751 76752 76753 76755 76756 76759 76762  


Dep't  


7106


0100
7106


0200
7106


0300
7106


0500
7106


0600
7106


0900
7106


1200  


FP1-Jul $42,621.30 $215,332.01 $295,519.11 $25,850.00 $753,494.00 $29,000.81 $724,549.83 $146,945.40 $786,011.28 $124,164.15 $2,761,370.43 $3,143,487.89 1,764,128.89
FP2-Aug $42,621.30 $214,435.22 $10,519.11 $25,850.00 $1,122,991.00 $29,000.81 $629,178.16 $146,945.40 $211,963.07 $124,166.19 $2,176,447.55 $2,557,670.26 1,178,311.26
FP3-Sept $43,151.66 $216,665.90 $70,519.11 $25,850.00 $1,122,991.00 $29,000.81 $628,600.66 $73,636.39 $211,963.07 $59,883.68 $2,162,561.04 $2,482,262.28 1,102,903.28


FP4-Oct $43,151.66 $219,824.38 $645,067.12 $25,850.00 $622,991.00 $29,000.81 $651,153.64 $73,636.39 $211,963.07 $59,884.70 $2,259,662.03 $2,582,522.77 1,203,163.77


FP5-Nov $43,151.66 $223,512.49 $245,067.12 $25,850.00 $622,991.00 $28,704.43 $653,529.64 $73,636.39 $211,963.07 $59,885.65 $1,861,741.65 $2,188,291.45 1,308,932.45
FP6-Dec $48,773.00 $227,382.62 $63,684.12 $25,850.00 $622,991.00 $53,704.43 $1,191,572.46 $73,636.39 $211,963.07 $166,584.67 $2,243,401.47 $2,686,141.76 1,806,782.76
FP7-Jan $48,773.00 $227,083.04 $69,332.89 $25,850.00 $622,991.00 $53,704.43 $271,477.73 $220,581.39 $882,473.86 $166,587.42 $2,146,411.30 $2,588,854.76 1,709,495.76


FP8-Feb $48,773.00 $217,599.55 $149,332.89 $25,850.00 $622,991.00 $39,096.86 $274,900.53 $220,581.39 $781,925.86 $166,589.97 $2,114,678.53 $2,547,641.05 1,668,282.05


FP9-Mar $41,378.19 $197,336.18 $149,332.89 $25,850.00 $622,991.00 $39,096.86 $274,907.73 $147,272.38 $781,925.86 $166,592.88 $2,041,376.72 $2,446,683.97 $1,567,324.97


FP10-Apr


FP11-May


FP12-Jun
FP 13 


(FINAL)
          


Beginning balances:
(Note:  Warrants requested in FP 12 for last fiscal year are not subtracted from Cash until FP 1 of the next year.  They are instead recorded as 
"Vendors Payable")


 


** Available Funds:  76758 and 76759 (State Loan reserve funds); 76754 (Fed Loan); 76757 (Guernewood Park); 76761 (Cap and Debt policy reserve)   (These columns are hidden)
*** Starting FY 2017-18, Bldg Fund and PARS considered part of Reserves; Starting FY 2019-20, CERBT is also part of reserves, but only the contributions (not earnings) to PARS and CERBT are included


 





		Item V-D - Actual v Budgeted - 3Q 2019-20

		Item V-D.1 - Budget variances as of 03-31-2020 (75%)

		Sheet1



		Item V-D.2 - Capital variances as of 03-31-2020

		Sheet1



		Item V-D.3 - County Funds

		County Acctg Indices FY 99-00








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-E   
 
FROM: Ed Fortner, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: May 7, 2020 
 
SUBJECT:  DRAFT FY 2020-2021 BUDGET REPORT 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive the draft Budget Report and discuss any 
outstanding issues regarding the Draft District FY 2020-2021 Budget, including the District’s 
proposed water rates based on a 5% increase, and provide direction to staff and the ad hoc 
Budget subcommittee.  


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Provides financial direction for FY 2020-2021. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The draft FY 2020-2021 (FY21) Budget was presented at the April meeting.  At the meeting 
we discussed budget issues, the proposed water rate increases, and the line item details of the 
proposed FY21 Budget.  During the discussion several items were highlighted, among them 
was the 5% rate increase and the UL expense prepayment.  Highlights of the FY21 Budget 
include: 
 


• A 5% increase in the Water Usage, Base Rate and Capital Debt Reduction Charges.    
This is the ninth year of the nine-year plan to increase capital funding to a sustainable 
level.    
 


• Water sales are projected to be flat.   
 


• The Capital project for FY21, ~5,400 feet of water main replacement on Old River Rd. 
and Woodland Drive is estimated at $1,326,000.00. 


 
• Net Capital Funding will be approximately $313,000.  Net Capital Funding is the term 


used for estimating the amount of funding developed in the Operating and Capital 
Improvement Budget for funding capital projects.  It is the sum of the operating budget 
surplus, annual assessments, CDRC, and capital interest minus total debt payments.  
We believe that Net Capital Funding should be near $500,000 for a sustainable capital 
improvement program for the District. 


 







DRAFT FY 2020-2021 BUDGET REPORT  2 
May 7, 2020 
 


 


The Proposition 218 notices were mailed by April 16th, ~3,600 notices were mailed to all 
property owners.   As of May 7, 72 protests have been received.   
 
Exhibit A is the draft FY21 Budget Report.  It includes a summary of the budget detail, the 
revenues and expense pie charts and discussion of notable budget items.    This document plus 
information on the proposed 5% water rates increase will be on the District website.  Please 
review the report and provide comments to staff either at the meeting or via email. 


 
 


  


 


Table 1.  FY 2020-2021 Budget Preparation, Revised 
Reviewed/Approved Capital Improvement 
Program  


     February 2020 


Introduce Budget Process January 3, 2020 


Budget Committee meetings February - March 
2020 


Draft Budget to Board for Discussion/Action, 
Including Recommendations on Water Rates; 
Rate Study Report and Recommendations to 
Board for Discussion/ Action 


March 5, 2020 


Proposition 218 Mailing for Water Rate 
Increase 


April 16, 2020 


Draft Budget to Board for Discussion/Action May 7, 2020 


Approve Budget 
Prop 218 Public Hearing on Rates and Rate 
Study Recommendations 


June 4, 2020 


 







1 Exhibit A


2 DRAFT FY 2020-21 OPERATING BUDGET 


3
FY 18-19


FINAL (CASH)*
 FY19-20 
BUDGET


FY 19-20
Projected


 FY 20-21
BUDGET 


 Difference 
FY21-F20 
Budgets FY 2020-21


4 REVENUE
5 OPERATING REVENUE


6 4031 · Water Bill Revenue


7 4031.1. · Capital Debt Reduction Charg 278,867 296,383              301,498              316,573 20,190           5% rate increase based on projected


8 4031.1. · Water Sales - Base Rate 1,585,609 1,644,824           1,646,066           1,728,369 83,545           5% rate increase based on projected


9 647,749 633,846              667,181              700,541 66,695           Flat sales, 5% increase based on projected


10 4031.1. · Total Water Sales 2,512,225          2,575,053           2,614,745           2,745,483 170,430         As Calculated


11 Total OPERATING REVENUE 2,512,225 2,575,053 2,614,745 2,745,483 170,430         As Calculated


12 NON-OPERATING REVENUE


13 4445 · Grant Proceeds 0 0 0 -                         -                     


14 4448 · Policy Reserve Loan proceeds 0 -                         500,000              500,000              500,000         


15 1700 · Interest 10,900 8,000                 18,000                16,000                8,000             


16 3600 · Construction New Services 6,978 7,000                 7,000                 7,000                 


17 3601 · Construction Service Upgrades 10,384 3,000                 3,000                 3,000                 


18 4032 · Rent 105,717 105,000              105,000              110,810              5,810             Crystal $1361/mo = $16,322
AT&T $7874/mo = $94488


19 4040 · Miscellaneous Income 3,482 1,500                 5,800                 1,500                 -                     
USBank CC refunds
So. Cty Credit 


20 4117 · SCWA Reimbursement 2,745 -                         2,995                 -                         -                     SCWA contract over.


21 Total NON-OPERATING REVENUE 140,206 124,500 641,795 638,310 513,810         


22 Total Income 2,652,431 2,699,553 3,256,540 3,383,793 684,240         ** (500,000 as revenue proceeds)


23 EXPENSES
24 OPERATING EXPENSES


25 SALARY & BENEFITS


26 Salary


27 5910 · Wages 835,923 903,046 850,000              835,000              (68,046)          As Calculated @ 3% Increase


28 5912 · Overtime 36,645 34,307 35,000                37,000                2,693             As Calculated


29 5916 · On-Call Pay 35,788 34,950 37,000                37,000                2,050             As Calculated


30 5918 · Extra help - Contrac 37,047 34,100 37,344                36,000                1,900             As Calculated


31 945,403 1,006,403 959,344 945,000 (61,403)          


32 Benefits


33 5500 · Flex Spending -2,643 0 0 0 -                     


34 5920 · Retirement net EE s


67,856 95,927 70,000 87,000 (8,927)            


JK: ER Rates: 
  2%@55: 10.484%; 2%@62: 7.732%
Est bi-weekly total: $5,625 (assuming 5% salary 
increase)
Est Ee share: $2,282.  NET $3343 = $86,918


35 5920.4 · Retirement UL 125,451 55,451 55,451 34,854 (20,597)          JK:  Mandatory UL $34854.  


36 5920.5 · Retirement UL 0 64,549 500,000 500,000 435,451         JK:  (Loaned from Policy Reserves)


37 5922 · Payroll Taxes - Emp  14,603 16,761 13,500 16,000 (761)               As Calculated


38 5930 · Health/Dental/Visio  185,364 237,000 208,000 240,000              3,000             Health Insurance Up Due to Employee Choice


39 5931 · Retiree health
7,842 7,680 8,800 9,800 2,120             


Includes contribution to CERBT of $3000; Per JK cost 
per retiree 2020 $139.75; 2020 $143
Total retirees: 4


40 5940 · Workers Comp Insu 27,297 37,000 33,400 38,000 1,000             Per JK, still waiting for 2020-21 EMOD


41 5941 · Life Insurance (GM 0 0 1,000 1,000 1,000             Per EF contract.


42 425,770 514,368 890,151 926,654 412,286         


43 Total SALARY & BENEFITS 1,371,173 1,520,771 1,849,495 1,871,654 350,883         


44 SERVICES & SUPPLIES


45 Communications  


46
6040-I · Internet service 2,354 2,350                 2,350                 2,700                 350                


Comcast -$86.13/month: $1034
GotoMyPC $88/mo = $1056
Sonic.net $47.90/mo = $575


47
6040-C · Cell Phones 4,058 4,900                 4,200                 4,600                 (300)               


Verizon $35/mo: $420, GM-$600
Misc parts/holders: $200
Cell phone reimburse $275/mo - $3300


48
6040-P · Radios 453 680                    620                    200                    (480)               Misc. parts/batteries: $200


COMBINE THIS CATEGORY WITH CELL PHONES?


49
6040-T · Telephones 22,512 22,900                24,000                24,000                1,100             


Ans. Service: $2500
AT&T Phones: $1,400/mo: $16,800
Mitel Phones: $360/mo=$4,320


50 29,377 30,830 31,170 31,500 670                


51 Insurances


52 6101 · Liability & Auto Ins 40,948 44,000                45,214                46,000                2,000             


53 40,948 44,000 45,214 46,000 2,000             


Sweetwater Springs Water District                                                      
DRAFT 2019-2020 Operating and Capital Budget                   


4031.1. · Water Sales - Usage Charges 
+ Other


Total Salary


Total Benefits


Total Communications


Total Insurances







54
FY 18-19


FINAL (CASH)*
 FY19-20 
BUDGET


FY 19-20
Projected


 FY 20-21
BUDGET 


 Difference 
FY21-F20 
Budgets FY 2020-21


55 Maint/Rep - Office & Vehicles


56 6140 · Vehicle Maintenanc 18,193 21,000                15,500                21,000                -                     Tires for Dump Truck, Backhoe


57


6151 · Office Maintenance 5,701 6,000                 5,000                 6,000                 -                     


Alarm System - $145/qtr.=$580
SR Computers - $195/mo = $2340/year 
Copy mach. maint - 1400/yr
Call One - $1000/yr
Landscaping - $300/yr
Misc / Other - $250


58 23,894 27,000 20,500 27,000 -                     


59 Maint/Repair - Facilities -                     


60
6085 · Janitorial Services 8,420 8,800                 8,800                 9,000                 200                


Maria Reyes (office Janitorial): $125/mo  = $1500
United Site Svces (port-o-lets): $305/mo = $3660
Recology Garbage $2040
Sewer - GVTP ($1700)


61 5,812 5,000                 6,000                 5,000                 -                     


62 32,073 50,000                250,000              50,000                -                     As Calculated


63 64,466 50,000                70,000                75,000                25,000           well # 4 Monte Rio & #4 El Bonita rehab 


64 6143 · Generator Maintena 1,122 1,000                 1,000                 4,000                 3,000             PG&E Planned Outages


65 111,893 114,800 335,800 143,000 28,200           


66 Miscellaneous Expenses  


67


6280 · Memberships 12,306 12,020                12,000                11,000                (1,020)            


USA $700
AWWA $420
CSDA $6800
CalWEP: NOT INCLUDED THIS YEAR
MR Chamber -$50
RR Chamber - $150
Cal Rural $1100
WCWW $200


68 6303 · Claims 386 1,500                 500                    1,500                 -                     Estimate


69


6593 · Governmental Fees 17,128 15,000                18,000                19,000                4,000             


Elections costs: $0
Notice of Determination $230
Parcel List $300
LAFCO $6,900
Hazmat $1300
Operator license fees $1000
System fees $9000


70 29,820 28,520 30,500 31,500 2,980             


71 Office Expense -                     


72
6410 · Postage 12,303 17,000                18,000                19,000                2,000             


Billing (2000 pieces @ $.50 X 12 months) = $12,000
Prop 218 mailing:  4000 X .50 = $2,000
1 extra mailing: 3600 X .50 = $1,800
Other mail 


73


6430 · Printing Expense 8,467 7,500                 7,500                 8,000                 500                


Window Envelopes $1100
Return Envelopes $800
Water Bills + Autopay $1500
Doorhangers $400
Turn Off Notices $600
Letterhead $250
Misc. Inserts/folding (CCR, Flood, Rate Incr. $1000)
Prop 218 notice: $700
Checkblanks $200
Tagbooks/Receipt books $700


74


6461 · Office Supplies 7,518 6,000                 5,500                 6,000                 -                     


Supplies $4000
Plants/Landscaping $150
Christmas Tree $80
Christmas party $400
Business lunches $75
Paper products/coffee $250
Furniture $500


75


6800 · Subscriptions/Lega  861 1,100                 1,100                 1,100                 -                     


Press Democrat $475
Legal Notices $400
Sonoma West $70
Safety Meeting Outlines $95


76


6890 · Computers/Softwar 2,636 2,500                 1,700                 2,500                 -                     


Antivirus softsware $60
Cloud software $70
Misc $400
Quickbooks upgrade $500
Workstation upgrades - $2000 (2)
Office 365 upagrade: $500


77 31,785 34,100 33,800 36,600                2,500             


Total Miscellaneous Expenses


Total Maint/Rep - Office & Vehicles


6100 · SCADA System
6180 · Distribution 
System Repairs
6235 · Treatment 
Sys/Well Repairs


Total Maint/Repair - Facilities


Total Office Expense







78
FY 18-19


FINAL (CASH)*
 FY19-20 
BUDGET


FY 19-20
Projected


 FY 20-21
BUDGET 


 Difference 
FY21-F20 
Budgets FY 2020-21


79 Operating Supplies


80 6300 · Chemicals 14,377 20,000                18,500 20,000                -                     No KmNO4, more dechlor for flushing


81 6880 · Tools and Equipme 2,960 7,000                 5,000 7,000 -                     
Generator $1,300 Mini Jack hammer $450. Chain saw 
$400.


82 6881 · Safety Equipment -232 1,200                 2,200 2,000                 800                Work Signs


83 17,105 28,200 25,700 29,000 800                


84 Professional Services


85 6514 · Lab/Testing Fees 13,063 12,500                13,500                12,500                -                     


86


6570 · Consultant Fees 45,380 58,000                45,000                52,000                (6,000)            


IEDA $12,500
Open Spatial (Mapping): $4,200
SR Computers/Chris Meyers (non-maintenance work) 
$1000
SR Computers/Kim (website; Office 365 upgrade) 
$1500
Grants Consultant $30,000


87 6610 · Legal 12,718 20,000                25,000                30,000                10,000           Recent Costs


88


6630 · Audit/Accounting 42,824 42,000                42,000                35,000                (7,000)            


ADP $65/2 weeks = $1300
W-2s = $80
Authorize.net $1000
Auditor $8,500
TSYS: $17000
E-check fees = $2100
West America fees $230/mo = $2760
1099 = $175
County Accounting Fees = $800


89 113,985 132,500 125,500 129,500 (3,000)            


90 Rents & Leases & Loans


91
6820 · Equipment 1,235 3,300                 3,300                 3,300                 -                     Postage machine $1300


Action rents: $2000


92 6840 · Building & Warehou
29,790 29,790                29,790                32,000                2,210             


Rent: $2,650/mo = 32,000 (est based on new lease in  
May 2020


93 Policy Reserve Loan
0 -                         -                         135,000              135,000         $500,000 borrowed FY 2019-20; $500,000 borrowed FY 


2020-21.  Year 1 of 7 years payback $135,000 annually.


94 31,025 33,090 33,090 170,300 137,210         


95 Transportation & Travel  


96
7120 · Seminars & related 1,450 3,650                 2,650                 5,000                 1,350             


JK - $250, EF-$1,000
LK and CMH - $400 
Field: $1500


97 7201 · Vehicle Gas 23,553 20,000                24,000                24,000                4,000             


98 7300 · Travel Reimbursem 12,781 7,400                 8,000                 7,000                 (400)               EF $500/mo = $6000
CMH/NK/JK $80/mo = $960


99 37,784 31,050 34,650 36,000 4,950             


100 Uniforms


101 6021.1 · Boots 1,249 1,500                 1,500                 1,500                 -                     $225 X 7 = $1450


102 6021.3 · T-shirts 1,636 1,800                 1,700                 1,800                 -                     


103 6021.4 · Jackets 0 240                    240                    240                    -                     2 jackets


104 2,885 3,540 3,440 3,540 -                     


105 Utilities


106 7320 · Electricity 102,809 110,000              110,000 115,000              5,000             JK: anticipating PGE rate increase


107 7321 · Propane 3,178 3,000                 3,000 3,000                 -                     


108 105,987 113,000 113,000 118,000 5,000             


109 Total SERVICES & SUPPLIES 576,488 620,630 832,364 801,940 181,310         


110 Total OPERATING EXPENSES 1,947,661 2,141,401 2,681,859 2,673,594 532,193         ** 500,000 Retirement UL


111 OPERATING SURPLUS/DEFICIT $704,770 $558,152 $574,681 $710,199 152,047$       


112 FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES


113 8517 · Field/Office equipment 0 -                         0 9,500                 JK: New copier $8000 (est.). Alarm $1,500


114 8573 · Vehicles 45,037 -                         50,000                50,000           New F-350 truck, utility bed, lift gate


115 8511.1 · Tank/Facilities Sites -531 24,000                15,000 24,000                -                     Harrison Rd roof $12,000. Park Ave roof & liner 
$12,000.


116 8511.6 · Leasehold Improvements 0 0 0 -                         -                     


117 Total FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES 44,506 24,000 15,000 83,500 59,500           


118 TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS


119 8620.7 · Tfers to CIRF for CDR Revenue 288,172 296,383 301,498 316,573 20,190           


120 8620.3 · Tfers to CIRF - PY Surplus 0 0 0 -                         -                     


121 8620.3 · Tfers to CIRF 210,000 190,000 215,000 270,000              80,000           


122 8620.5 · Tfers to Building Fund 15,000 15,000                15,000 15,000                -                     


123 8620.2 · Tfers to In-House Constr 25,000 25,000                25,000 25,000                -                     


124 Total TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS 538,172 526,383 556,498 626,573 100,190         


125 SURPLUS/DEFICIT 122,092 7,769 3,183 126 (7,643)            


126


Total Utilities


Total Operating Supplies


Total Professional Services


Total Rents & Leases


Total Transportation & Travel


Total Uniforms







127
128 DRAFT FY 2020-21 CAPITAL BUDGET 


129   
FY 18-19


FINAL (CASH)*
 FY19-20 
BUDGET


FY 19-20
Projected


 FY 20-21
BUDGET 


 Difference 
FY21-F20 
Budgets FY 2020-21


130 1002 - Construction Flat Charges 13,107 27,000                27,000                27,000                -                     As Calculated


131 1001 - CY Direct Charges 718,394 710,000              710,000              710,000              -                     As Calculated


132 1061 - PY Direct Charges 26,651 40,000                40,000                40,000                -                     As Calculated


133 1700 - Interest 39,902 25,000                25,000                25,000                -                     As Calculated


134 4620.2 - Tfers from Operations (In-House Constr.) 25,000 25,000                25,000                25,000                -                     As Calculated


135 4620.2 - Tfers from Operations (CDR) 288,172 296,383              301,498              316,573              20,190           As Calculated


136 4620.2 - Tfers from Operations (Surplus) 210,000 190,000              215,000              270,000              80,000           


137 4620.2 - Tfers from Operations (USDA bond pymts at WA) 132,500 -                         -                         -                         -                     


138 USDA 2018 Bond proceeds 1,535,000  0 0
139 TOTAL CAPITAL REVENUE 2,988,726 1,313,383 1,343,498 1,413,573 100,190         


140
141 EXPENSES
142 DEBT PAYMENTS


143 Gen. Obligation Bonds Principal 26,981 52,622                52,622                54,278                1,656              


144 Cap One Revenue Bond Principal 343,000 359,000              359,000              368,000              9,000             


145 State Loan Principal 131,346 135,235              135,235              139,298              4,063              
146 Private Placement Loan Principal 150,901 165,570              162,470              167,650              2,079             


147 Interest Expense 360,836 343,366              343,365              319,908              (23,458)          


148 TOTAL DEBT PAYMENTS 1,013,065 1,055,794 1,052,693 1,049,134 (6,660)            


149
150 2018 CIP Design and Construction Mgmt 106,691 -                     -                     


151 2018 CIP Construction 957,228 -                     -                     


152 2019 CIP 103,408 -                     62,472                -                         -                     Final Costs of Monte Rio ATEC filters


153 1,326,000           1,326,000      


154 In-House Construction Projects 67,908 25,000                25,000                25,000


155 TOTAL CONSTRUCTION EXPENSES 1,235,235          25,000                87,472                1,351,000           1,326,000      


156 TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENSES 2,248,299 1,080,794 1,140,164 2,400,134 1,319,340      


157 SURPLUS/DEFICIT 740,427 232,589 203,334 (986,561) (1,219,150)     


158
159 FUND AND LOAN BALANCES (EOY)


160 Beg Funds above District Reserve Policy 1,759,797           1,759,797          1,963,131          -                                                                               
162 Ending Funds ab District Policy (DP) 1,759,797          1,992,386           1,963,131           976,570              


163 Funds ab DP and Debt Payments 746,732             936,592              910,438              (72,564)              


164 Net Capital Funding 270,054 205,589 238,805 312,439


Sum of the operating budget surplus, annual assessments, 
CIRF, CDRC, and capital interest minus total debt 
payments.


2021 CIP







 


 
 
 


Sweetwater Springs 
Water District 


 
Annual Operating & Capital 


Improvement Budget 
 


2020-21 Fiscal Year 
(For the period July 1, 2020 - June 30, 2021) 


 
Board of Directors 


 
Richard Holmer, President 


Sukey Robb-Wilder, Vice President 
Gaylord Schaap, Financial Coordinator 


Tim Lipinski 
Larry Spillane 


 
General Manager 


Ed Fortner 


Exhibit A 







Sweetwater Springs Water District 
Annual Operating & Capital Improvement Budget 


2020-2021 Fiscal Year 
Summary 


 
In Fiscal Year 2020-2021 (FY20) Sweetwater Springs Water District has budgeted 
operating expenses of $2.674 million, debt repayment of $1.05 million, capital 
improvement expenses of $1.351 million and transfers to the capital reserve of 
approximately $250,000. Figures 1 and 2 respectively show the distribution of these 
expenses and sources of funds to pay for these expenses.    


 


 


 


 







3 


Table 1 is a summary of the FY21 Budget which is described in detail in the 
following pages.  The FY21 Budget is similar in form and content to prior 
years’ budgets.  The FY21 Budget includes the first year of 5% increases for 
the Base Rate and Water Usage Charges and the first year of a 5% increase 
to the Capital Debt Reduction Charge which are designed to develop 
sustainable capital project funding.  These rate increases are recommended 
in the 2020 Bartle and Wells Rate Study.   
 
 


 


Table 1
FY 2020-21 OPERATING BUDGET SUMMARY


FY 18-19
FINAL (CASH)*  


 FY19-20 
BUDGET


FY 19-20
Projected  


 FY 20-21
BUDGET 


 Difference 
FY21-F20 
Budgets 


REVENUE
1 OPERATING REVENUE
2 4031 · Water Bill Revenue
3 4031.1. · Capital Debt Reduction Charge 278,867 296,383           301,498           316,573 20,190           


4 4031.1. · Water Sales - Base Rate 1,585,609 1,644,824        1,646,066         1,728,369 83,545           


5
647,749 633,846          667,181           700,541 66,695           


6 4031.1. · Total Water Sales 2,512,225           2,575,053        2,614,745         2,745,483 170,430         


7 Total OPERATING REVENUE 2,512,225 2,575,053 2,614,745 2,745,483 170,430         


8 Total NON-OPERATING REVENUE 140,206 124,500 641,795 638,310 513,810         


9 Total Income 2,652,431 2,699,553 3,256,540 3,383,793 684,240         


10 EXPENSES
11 OPERATING EXPENSES
12 SALARY & BENEFITS
13 945,403 1,006,403 959,344 945,000 (61,403)          


14 425,770 514,368 890,151 926,654 412,286         


15 Total SALARY & BENEFITS 1,371,173 1,520,771 1,849,495 1,871,654 350,883         


16 SERVICES & SUPPLIES
17 Total SERVICES & SUPPLIES 576,488 620,630 832,364 801,940 181,310         


18 Total OPERATING EXPENSES 1,947,661 2,141,401 2,681,859 2,673,594 532,193         


19 OPERATING SURPLUS/DEFICIT $704,770 $558,152 $574,681 $710,199 152,047$       


20 Total FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES 44,506 24,000 15,000 83,500 59,500           


21 Total TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS 538,172 526,383 556,498 626,573 100,190         


22 SURPLUS/DEFICIT 122,092 7,769 3,183 126 (7,643)            


23
24
25 CAPITAL BUDGET
26 REVENUE/SOURCES OF FUNDS
27 TOTAL CAPITAL REVENUE 2,988,726 1,313,383 1,343,498 1,413,573 100,190         


28
29 EXPENSES
30 DEBT PAYMENTS


31 Gen. Obligation Bonds Principal 26,981 52,622            52,622             54,278           1,656             


32 Cap One Revenue Bond Principal 343,000 359,000          359,000           368,000         9,000             


33 State Loan Principal 131,346 135,235          135,235           139,298         4,063             


34 Private Placement Loan Principal 150,901 165,570          162,470           167,650         2,079             


35 Interest Expense 360,836 343,366          343,365           319,908         (23,458)          


36 TOTAL DEBT PAYMENTS 1,013,065 1,055,794 1,052,693 1,049,134 (6,660)            


37
38 2019 CIP 103,408 -                 62,472             -                    -                    


39 1,326,000       1,326,000      


40 In-House Construction Projects 67,908 25,000            25,000             25,000
41 TOTAL CONSTRUCTION EXPENSES 1,235,235           25,000            87,472             1,351,000       1,326,000      


42 TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENSES 2,248,299 1,080,794 1,140,164 2,400,134 1,319,340      


43 SURPLUS/DEFICIT 740,427 232,589 203,334 (986,561) (1,219,150)     
44
45 FUND AND LOAN BALANCES (EOY)
46 Beg Funds above District Reserve Policy 1,759,797        1,759,797      1,963,131    
48 Ending Funds ab District Policy (DP) 1,759,797           1,992,386        1,963,131         976,570         
49 Funds ab DP and Debt Payments 746,732              936,592          910,438           (72,564)          


50 Net Capital Funding 270,054 205,589 238,805 312,439


2021 CIP


4031.1. · Water Sales - Usage Charges + 
Other


Total Salary
Total Benefits







4 


2020-21 Fiscal Year (FY21) Budget 
 
The annual budget of the Sweetwater Springs Water District (SSWD) allows the 
District to accomplish its mission which is to provide its customers with quality 
water and service in an open, accountable, and cost-effective manner and to 
manage District resources for the benefit of the community and environment. The 
District achieves its mission of producing good quality water by pumping Russian River 
underflow from five wells – 3 located at the Guerneville El Bonita well site and 2 located 
at the Monte Rio well site.  That water is then treated in two separate treatment facilities 
at the Highlands site for Guerneville and the Monte Rio well site for Monte Rio and 
environs and distributed through approximately 68 miles of distribution pipes and 3500 
service laterals of varying lengths and stored in 26 tanks and reservoirs.   This system is 
managed, and its operation administered by the District staff of 11 full-time employees.  
The District has an aggressive capital improvement program aimed at maintaining and 
improving the capital infrastructure to industry standards to deliver high-quality water, 
reduce system water losses, and maintain adequate system pressure and fire flow.  The 
annual budget identifies the revenues and expenses that accomplish these tasks. 
 
The FY21 Budget follows the format established in prior years and includes the 
first year of a 5% increase to the Base Rate and Water Usage Charges, and the 
first year of a 5% increase to the Capital Debt Reduction Charge. 
 
5% increase to the Base Rate, Water Usage Charges, and Capital Debt Reduction 
Charge:   A principal source of revenues for the FY21 Budget is water rates paid in 
bimonthly bills by District customers (Figure 2).  In 2020 the District staff coordinated a 
Rate Study with Bartle and Wells, who conducted a comprehensive multi-year analysis 
to show that with small annual increases in rates the District can develop sustainable 
funding for needed capital projects to maintain District facilities.  The financial analysis 
showed that annual 5% increases over the next five years should build sufficient funds 
available annually for capital projects.   FY21 is the first year of planned annual 5% rate 
increases designed to achieve the sustainable capital improvement program.  More 
information on the District’s water rates and a water rate calculator can be found on the 
District’s website at www.sweetwatersprings.com.   
 
Net Capital Funding will be approximately $313,000.  Net Capital Funding is the term 
used for estimating the amount of funding developed in the Operating and Capital 
Improvement Budget for funding capital projects (line 50 in Table 1).  It is the sum of the 
operating budget surplus, annual assessments, CDRC, and capital interest minus total 
debt payments.  Net Capital Funding is budgeted to increase because of decreased debt 
payments and reasonable operations expenses, plus the effect of the 5% water rate 
increase.  We believe that Net Capital Funding should be near $500,000 for a 
sustainable capital improvement program for the District.  
 
Water sales have been flat for several years, due in part to State water conservation 
measures.  Water use in calendar year 2019 was lower than State direction even though 
the required restrictions have been lifted - approximately 86% of 2013 which is the State 
Board base year.  This is a 2.2% decrease in sales over calendar year 2018.  A per 
capita limit of 55 gpcd will be the new goal.  In 2019, Sweetwater averaged 63.8 gpcd.  
We expect that water use in the coming fiscal year will be at a similar level and that a 5% 
rate increase will result in a 5% revenue increase in water sales.   
 



http://www.sweetwatersprings.com/





5 


FY 2021 CIP (Table 1):  The FY21 Capital Budget includes replacement 5,400 feet of 
HDPE water main on Old River Rd and Woodland Drive estimated at $1,326,000.00.     
 
Addressing CalPERS retirement program Unfunded Accrued Liability (UAL):  The 
FY21 Budget continues to make accelerated payments for the CalPERS UAL.  The 
Board has determined that this item needs special attention as it will continue to impact 
District finances for many years.  The FY21 payment is $500,000. 
 
District Reserve Policy:   The District Reserve Policy was approved in September 
2009.   The Reserve Policy allows the District to gauge its financial health and 
adequately plan for its future and allows ratepayers to follow this planning.  The District 
Reserve Policy has the following components: 


 
• Operating Budget Cash Reserve - 15% of the annual Operating Budget expenses 


to provide for prompt payment of operating expenses at the start of the fiscal year, 
$402,279.  


• Operating Reserve – 25% of the Operating Budget for unanticipated expenses for 
an economic downturn or other economic crisis, or for dealing with emergencies 
and disaster-related expenses, $670,465. 


• Debt Repayment Reserve - 25% of all payments for principal and interest on all 
District loans to ensure funding is available to repay existing District debt, 
$262,284. 


• Capital Reserve – 25% of the nominal Capital Budget of $1 million for similar issues 
with the capital program, $250,000. 


• Total Reserve - $1,585,028. 
 


The sum of all district funds is shown in the budget as Total Reserves End of Year 
(EOY).  This is the sum of the District discretionary funds listed in the budget at the end 
of the year.  The difference between Total Reserves EOY and Total District Policy 
Reserves is Reserves Above District Policy.  The District goal is to keep this number 
positive.  The amount above the District Policy Reserve is the amount the District has for 
future capital projects.  The Reserves Above District Policy is a good measure of where 
we are in funding an ongoing capital program.  For FY21, District Policy Reserves are 
at $1,585,028 and Reserves Above District Policy at the end of the fiscal year are 
$976,570 with total reserves at $2,552,598.     
 
 Other assumptions used to develop the Operating section of the Budget include: 


 
• Water Usage and Base Rate and Capital Debt Reduction Charges will be raised 


5%.    
• Water Usage revenues are based on flat water sales and mid-year water sales 


projections. Thus, the FY21 water usage revenues are estimated to increase by 
5% over the amount projected for FY20.  Water sales are flat to slightly trending 
down and should remain so. 


• Salaries and Retirement have been adjusted to reflect a 3% increase as the 2020 
Union Memorandum of Understanding is being negotiated.  


 
 
 
 
 
 







6 


Line Item Highlights of the FY21 Budget: 
 
The FY21 Operating Budget provides for ongoing costs consistent with previous 
years’ expenditures, except where identified below. 
 
The operating budget encompasses the “expenditures related to the operation, 
maintenance and repair of water facilities,” as well as the billing, collections, accounting, 
fiscal management, and other overall administration. 
 
Water Bill Revenue line items have been adjusted to reflect the 5% increases on 
projected sales revenue in the Base Rate, Capital Debt Reduction Charge (CDRC) and 
Water Usage Charges based on flat water sales revenue also includes a 5% increase.  
The 5% water rate increase will increase District revenues by approximately $170,000.  
Operating interest is continued at a relatively low amount to reflect continuing lower 
interest on deposited funds. 
 
Under Expenses, Salaries are budgeted to decrease by approximately 6%.  Benefits 
are budgeted to decrease approximately 17% over the budgeted FY20 budget because 
of retirements and internal promotions.  This reduction in benefits expense does not 
reflect the final $500,000 UL prepayment.  Salaries and Benefits are a major District 
expense – approximately 72% of the FY20 Operating Budget expenses. 
 
Total Supplies and Services are approximately $181,310 more than the FY20 
approved budget including the $135,000 payment to reserves for the UL prepayment.  
Maintenance/Repair – Facilities is a big cost item in Supplies and Services and is 
budgeted to increase by $28,200 for FY20.   Electricity is a big expense item, is 
budgeted to be $5,000 more than FY20, and is the major expense difference in this 
category.   
 
Fixed Asset Expenditures are higher than FY21 because we are purchasing a truck 
this year.  There are also substantial expenses for Tank/Facilities Sites to repair District 
tanks. 
 
The Operating Budget has a surplus of approximately $710,199 which is transferred as 
revenue to the Capital Improvement Budget as Capital Improvement Revenue Fund 
(CIRF) ($270,000) Building Fund ($15,000), In-House Construction Fund ($25,000), and 
CDRC revenue ($316,573).   
 
The FY21 Capital Budget has one major project.   
 
Capital Interest revenue reflects expected interest rates and similar fund amounts in 
this coming year. 
 
Capital Debt is a major expense item – approximately $1.05 million and 20% of total 
District annual expenses in FY21.   The District has worked hard to keep interest rates 
as low as possible refinancing and restructuring the Capital One debt down from 3.6% to 
2.78% to free cash flow for Capital projects.   District Capital Debt includes: 
 


• General Obligation (GO) Bonds – In 2013 the District refinanced the majority of 
the original G.O. bonds approved to purchase the District and make needed 
capital improvements.  Approximately $1,647,875 remained in USDA bonds, 







7 


refinanced to an interest rate of 2.375%.   Annual payment - $64,284, remaining 
principal is $1,516,026.  Paid off in 2054.  
  


• In 2018 the District took out $1,535,000 in new USDA bonds at an interest rate of 
2.25%.  In GY 2020-21 the annual payment on this bond is $59,682.50.  
Remaining principal is $1,510,000.  Paid off in 2058.   


 
• Cap One Bond – The District refinanced the first 20 years of the GO Bonds in 


September 2013 with an interest rate of 3.6%.  In FY 2019-20, the District 
restructured the remaining payments on the bond, and as part of the restructure 
the interest rate was lowered to 2.78%.  Paid off in 2033, under the restructure 
the annual payments will vary, with the FY21 payment at $513,432.11.    
Remaining principal is $5,623,892.40. 


 
• State Loans - two loans for approximately $3 million which were approved in 


1995-96 for needed improvements.  The smaller loan was paid off in September 
2016; the second loan will be completed in 2022.  Annual payment - $146,619.  
Remaining principal is $282,726.61. 


 
• Private Placement Loan.  $3 million loan acquired in 2008 for needed capital 


improvements.  Paid off in 2028.  The interest rate for this loan reset in 2018 and 
will be reduced from 4.75% to 3.10%, reducing the annual payment by 
approximately $18,000. Annual payment in FY20 - $216,076.42.  Remaining 
principal is $1,603,670.33.  


 
District Reserves and Funds and Loan Balances show the District’s continuing 
healthy financial picture.   
 
As discussed above reserve balances are a good measure of the health of the District’s 
finances.  For FY21, District Policy Reserves are at $1,585,028 and Reserves Above 
District Policy at the end of the fiscal year are $976,570 with total reserves at 
$2,552,598. 
 
The detailed FY21 Budget is included as Attachment A.   
 
 
 
 





		Item V-E - FY 2020-2021 Draft Operating and Capital Budget Discussion

		Meeting Date: May 7, 2020



		Item V-E.1 Attachment A

		Sheet1



		Item V-E.2-Budget Report-FY 2020-21

		Board of Directors

		General Manager

		Ed Fortner

		Sweetwater Springs Water District

		2020-21 Fiscal Year (FY21) Budget










 
 


SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. VI  
 
FROM: Ed Fortner, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: May 7, 2020   
 
Subject:  GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT    
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive report from the General Manager. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 


1.  Laboratory Testing: Water quality tests confirm that all SSWD water meets all known 
State and Federal water quality standards.  Annual Reports were completed for GV and 
MR.  Diversion reports were completed for GV and MR.  


 
2.  Water Production and Sales:  Water sales in March were 16,886 units (38.8 AF 


Guerneville cycle), and production (calculated as running twelve-month average) was 48.1 
AF.  Compared to one year ago, sales were higher, and production was higher (42.6 AF 
and 56.4 AF, respectively).  Figure 1 shows sales, production and % difference for the 
combined systems; the water loss trend was down this month (20.1%).  Looking at the data 
over the last ten years, water production has dropped approximately 29%, and sales have 
dropped 18%.  The water loss percentage was around 30% and now is in the 15-20% 
range.  Much of the production and water loss drop can be attributed to the capital projects 
funded by Redevelopment.  The sales drop is probably due to conservation; it's unlikely 
historic use levels will return soon.    


 
3.  Leaks:  In April, we had eight total leak repairs with 63 hours on them.  Six leaks were in 


Guerneville and two leaks were in Rio Nido.  All leaks were in older lines.  That is more 
leaks and more person-hours compared to the prior month and the same number of leaks 
and more person-hours compared to April one year ago (8 and 45).  Figure 2 shows service 
and main leaks separately with a total leak line as well.  For Calendar Year 2019, total 
leaks were 78, down from 105 from 2018.  Looking at the leaks chart over the last ten 
years, we've come down from around 300 leaks per year to under 80 - quite a difference 
and very noticeable in what the field crews are able to do - address ongoing issues with in-
house projects instead of chasing leaks every day.     







General Manager’s Report  Page 2 of 7 
May 7, 2020 
 


   
4.  Guerneville Rainfall:  April rainfall was .94”, which is lower than the long-term average 


month and keeps the yearly total (16.17”) below the long-term annual average.  Our driest 
year on record was 1977 and we had 13.06” total by the end of April.        


  
5.   In-House Construction Projects: There were two in-house construction projects in April: 


• A bypass of 75’ of 2” Water main at Half Bridge due to leak at 17899 Old Monte 
Rio Rd. (GV).   Thirty two person-hours were spent on the project.  


• Water service was replaced at 16650 Hwy 116. (MR).  Nineteen hours were spent on 
the project. 


 
6.   Labor Negotiations:    Gregory Ramirez with IDEC, Laura Strand with Local 39 and I 


have been communicating and met on May seventh via webEx due to the uncertainties and 
health concerns around the Covid-19 Pandemic. 


 
7.   Rate Study Update:  The Final Rate Study will be presented by Bartle and Wells to the 


Board at the May 7th Board Meeting.   
 


8.   Lower Russian River Community Action Group Governance Meeting:  There was a 
remote meeting on April 23rd.  A pause is anticipated in the regulatory process.  Action is 
being taken around the grant funding for the feasibility study for Monte Rio/ Villa Grande 
sewerage solution(s). 


 
9.   FerrellGas Lease Update:  The lease for our Office space was renewed/ extended for 


three years with FerrellGas corporate offices. 
 


10. Lower Harrison Tank Site Retainer Wall Update:  Piazza Construction completed the 
project on April 30th.  The work turned out nicely.  We are investigating the need for a roof 
replacement and paint job on the tank in the next few years. 


 
11. Grant(s) Update:  Attended mandatory meeting of the Sonoma County Community 


Development Committee Public Hearing remotely on April 15th to consider our Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) application for the FY 2021 CIP (Old River Rd and 
Woodland Ave. line replacement).  The CDC and CDC staff recommended full funding 
request for Design and Planning of $115,920.00.  Final funding decisions will occur at the 
June Sonoma County Board of Supervisor’s meeting.  Drinking Water State Revolving 
Fund (DWSRF) staff informed the GM that Guerneville did NOT qualify for disadvantaged 
status.  I replied with Census and CDBG data that confirms the disadvantaged status.  
DWSRF (Water Board) staff denied this new request on April 17th and we are now getting 
guidance to conduct a mailed income survey to hopefully qualify as disadvantaged. 


 
12.   Gantt Chart: The Gantt Chart is updated for April, FY 2020.   







General Manager’s Report  Page 3 of 7 
May 7, 2020 
 


 
          


 
 


 
 
 
 
 


 
 







General Manager’s Report  Page 4 of 7 
May 7, 2020 
 







 
 


 







General Manager’s Report  Page 6 of 7 
May 7, 2020 
 


 
 


Aug-19 Sep-19 Oct-19 Nov-19 Dec-19 Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 FY21+
Ongoing Activity
Board Action
Other Milestone
Current Month


Projected 
Completion
/
Milestone 
Date


Budget Preparation
•        Capital Improvement Program 
Board Discussion 
•        Staff Budget Preparation Begins


•        Ad Hoc Budget Committee 
Reviews Draft Budget
•        Draft Budget to Board for 
Discussion/Action
•        Approve Budget


Capital Projects
•        Update/Review District CIP


•        2021 CIP Planning


•        2021 CIP Design


•        2019 CIP Construction Ends


   Labor Negotiations


    Strategic Planning Nov-19


    Cost of Service Study Mar-20


Urban Water Management Plan Oct-20


Water Rights SCWA 
P t tEmergency Response Plan Review


Building Lease
•        Lease Renewal Aug-20


Policies and Procedures
•        Other Policy
•        Overall Review


District Annual Review


Figure 4.  Sweetwater Springs WD Calendar Gantt 


By Activity
Action Item/Milestone





		Meeting Date: May 7, 2020



